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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of E Lighting
Group Holdings Limited (the”Company” or “E Lighting”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to
the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

E Lighting, a listed company with its business rooted in Hong
Kong and also one of the most established retail chain groups of
lighting and household products in Hong Kong, is committed to
the sustainable development of the environment and the society
and is devoted to social responsibility. During the year ended 31
March 2019 (the “Financial Year”), E Lighting has participating in
several events launched by charitable institutions and has been
honoured a “Caring Company” for five consecutive years. The
Group also awarded the “Social Capital Builder Awards” and
“Family-Friendly Employers Award”, which has fully illustrated the
Group’s commitment to social responsibility, corporate spirit to
care for the community and employee and reached out to the
underprivileged.

Moreover, the Group has participating in the “Fluorescent Lamp
Recycling Programme”, which provides households with free
collection and treatment for all used mercury-containing lamps
to reduce the environmental risk from improper disposal of these
lamps and recover resources.

Despite the extremely challenging business environment, E Lighting
has continued to promote its existing business development. E
Lighting will maintain a flexible and tailored sales and marketing
strategy to offer its consumers with diversified and modern choices
by accurately procuring the suitable products for the domestic
market, which will in turn reinforce E Lighting’s leading market
position.

The Government announces certain measures to expedite and
increase housing supply and adopt a multi-pronged strategy to
increase land supply in a steady and sustained manner to meet with
housing demands in the 2019/20 budget. Therefore, E Lighting
expects the Government'’s effort to step up supply of residential
units in Hong Kong will drive demand for lighting and household
products and E Lighting is afforded with new opportunities in its
various lines of business.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT & ¥ &5

Looking forward, the Group will adopt more cautious strategies,
which will be executed with prudence and closely control its
expenditure in order to maintain its competitiveness. The Group will
strive to maintain a streamlined business operation, while catering
for consumers’ specific needs and being responsive to market
changes. Leveraging the strong support of the capital market, its
own strengths, and the global trends of saving energy, protecting
the environment and pursuing a higher quality of life, the Group
remains confident about its development in the future. Meanwhile,
the Group will pay more attention to economic change and take
every chance to identify any suitable investment opportunity in the
market for the Group. The Group will continue to maintain steady
growth and to maximise returns for the investors.

Hue Kwok Chiu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 June 2019
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Dear Shareholders,

| present the results of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2019 (the "Financial Year").

This Financial Year was a year full of challenges to E Lighting.
The economic and political uncertainty in Hong Kong have led to
continuous diminishing consumer spending momentum, and the
retail markets experienced a difficult operating environment. E
Lighting was cautious in its retail network development due to the
sluggish retail environment of Hong Kong and has concentrated
on the consolidation of its retail network and optimisation of the
product mix.

During the Financial Year, the Group’s revenue was approximately
HK$78,765,000, representing a decrease of approximately 3.6%
from approximately HK$81,725,000 as compared with that of the
preceding year, which was mainly due to uncertainty in macro
business environment.

During the Financial Year, revenue of the retail chain business
in lighting and designer label furniture was approximately
HK$72,083,000, accounted for approximately 91.5% of the
Group's revenue, representing an increase of approximately 1.5%
from approximately HK$71,040,000 as compared with that of the
preceding year.

During the Financial Year, revenue of the tableware, giftware
and other business was approximately HK$6,682,000, accounted
for approximately 8.5% of the Group’s revenue, representing
a decrease of approximately 37.5% from approximately
HK$10,685,000 as compared with that of the preceding year.

During the Financial Year, the Group’s gross profit was
approximately HK$42,366,000 and recorded a loss of
approximately HK$24,247,000 As at 31 March 2019, the Group's
net assets was approximately HK$21,425,000.
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CEO'S STATEMENT 1T H B+

The retail environment of Hong Kong market remains challenging
in 2019, but it is expected that the retail market may gradually
recover from the challenging economic outlook. The Group will
continue to concentrate on the consolidation of its retail network,
optimisation of product-mix and intensification of cost control, and
will also continue to seize opportunities to stabilise growth through
cautious strategic planning.

Lastly, | hereby express my sincere gratitude to all shareholders,
investors, business partners, staff and customers on behalf of E
Lighting. In spite of the challenges ahead, E Lighting will step
forward with ambitious entrepreneurship to reward for the
continuous supports from all parties.

Hui Kwok Keung Raymond
Founder and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 19 June 2019

N

8

“ E Lighting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

N

“E-NFEAETETHRATMRE - ERE
HZEMSAREERMABNLHEMNRTE
FER AEERTHEZINETEERE
B EmA Bl INREKAZEGSN - K5 R
BENRKRSE  BELEREREEER -

Bk AARUREZERABHTARR 1
% EHBH BIRES - BEABES -
EREHEELEN  BSAH ADEEH R
B -

FFE
BIA RTTI AR

EE —T-NAFXATNAAE



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

Retail chain business in lighting and designer label
furniture

Retail chain business in lighting and designer label furniture is
the core business of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”). Being one of the most established
retail chain groups of lighting products in Hong Kong, E Lighting
possesses rich experience in the sale of quality lighting and
designer label furniture products from all over the world. During
the year ended 31 March 2019 (the “Financial Year”), E Lighting
was cautious in its retail network development due to the sluggish
retail environment and has concentrated on the consolidation of
its retail network and optimisation of the product mix.

During the Financial Year, revenue of the retail chain business
in lighting and designer label furniture was approximately
HK$72,083,000, accounted for approximately 91.5% of the
Group's revenue.

Tableware, giftware and other business

Tableware, giftware and other business is mainly for wholesale
of tableware, giftware and other trading worldwide, which has
expanded the Group's business portfolio, and broadened its source
of income and generated additional cash flows. During the Financial
Year, revenue of the business in tableware and giftware was
approximately HK$6,682,000, accounted for approximately 8.5%
of the Group’s revenue.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

With reference to the monthly figures released by the Census
and Statistics Department of the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (the "Government”), the value of
total retail sales decrease in February 2019 over the previous year,
after increasing for 23 consecutive months from March 2017. It
continued to drop for 3 consecutive months from February 2019
to April 2019 over the previous year and the retail sales remained
weak in April 2019. The larger year-on-year decrease recorded in
April 2019 reflected the still-cautious consumption sentiment amid
external uncertainties.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &I 2 51 50 & 2

The Government announces certain measures to expedite and
increase housing supply to meet with demands. In the 2019/20
budget, the Government forecasted for the land resources and
housing supply in Hong Kong. The Government estimated that the
production of public housing will be about 100,400 units in the
next five years. The Government also estimated that the supply of
first-hand private residential property will be about 93,000 units
in the next 3 to 4 years and the production of private residential
housing will be about 18,800 units on average in the next five
years. At the same time, the Government aims to adopt a multi-
pronged strategy to increase land supply in a steady and sustained
manner. The Government set aside HK$2 billion to support Non-
Governmental Organisations in constructing transitional housing
and set aside HK$22 billion to implement the first batch of
government projects under the “single site, multiple use” initiative.

Therefore, the Directors foresee that the Hong Kong retail market
remains challenging in 2019, but expect the retail market may
gradually recover from the challenging economic outlook. The
Group will continue to concentrate on the consolidation of its retail
network, optimisation of product-mix and intensification of cost
control, and will also continue to seize opportunities to stabilise
growth through cautious strategic planning.

Looking forward, the Group expects the Government's effort to
step up supply of residential units in Hong Kong will drive demand
for lighting and household products. Therefore, E Lighting is
afforded with new opportunities in its various lines of business.
The Group will strive to maintain a streamlined business operation,
while catering for consumers’ specific needs and being responsive
to market changes. Leveraging the support of the capital market, its
own strengths, and the global trends of saving energy, protecting
the environment and pursuing a higher quality of life, the Group
is cautiously confident of its development in the future. The Group
will strive to maintain steady growth and to maximise returns for
the investors.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS & 2 2 & 5% K& 2 T

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

During the Financial Year, the Group’s revenue was approximately
HK$78,765,000, representing a decrease of approximately 3.6%
from approximately HK$81,725,000 as compared with that of the
preceding year, which was mainly due to uncertainty in macro
business environment.

During the Financial Year, revenue of the retail chain business
in lighting and designer label furniture was approximately
HK$72,083,000, representing an increase of approximately 1.5%
from approximately HK$71,040,000 as compared with that of the
preceding year.

During the Financial Year, revenue of the tableware, giftware and
other business was approximately HK$6,682,000, representing
a decrease of approximately 37.5% from approximately
HK$10,685,000 as compared with that of the preceding year.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

During the Financial Year, the Group’s gross profit was
approximately HK$42,366,000, representing an increase of
approximately 5.7% from approximately HK$40,078,000 as
compared with that of the preceding year. The increase was
primarily due to increase in sales and gross profit margin. During
the Financial Year, the Group’s overall gross profit margin was
approximately 53.8%.

5t %5 12 &

E S
RABTREE - % B 1B L 478,765,000/
T - REFREIA81,725,0007% 7T 2 43.6% -
IBRAEBRETRBYE -

RATHRFEE  REKLEEBEMRERER
BT EEEERAEETA72,083,00087T ¢
B EF[REHEI471,040,00078 T 1 H1491.5% o

RATBREFE REEEEEERREME
T H) & 2 58 496,682,000/ 7T » WEF R E L
10,685,000/ JT ik 4> 4937.5% °

EFMREF=E

R BFE - A% B K E F 442,366,000
BT B & F [F H 440,078,000 JT 18I0 49
57% ° EIMEEZAHREEREFEEMATE -
RAFRFE  NEBEHEEEFEL53.8% °

//”\\

srnsEzRaRan —2-hesn @

11



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &I & 51 5% & O 4T

Selling and Distribution Expenses

During the Financial Year, the Group's selling and distribution
expenses was approximately HK$28,863,000, representing
a decrease of approximately 14.1% from approximately
HK$33,584,000 as compared with that of the preceding year.
Selling and distribution expenses primarily consists of rentals for
retail outlets and related expenses, staff costs (including salaries
and sales commission to salespersons), electronic payment charges
and depreciation. The decrease was primarily due to decrease in
rental expenses.

Administrative and Other Expenses

During the Financial Year, the Group’s administrative and other
expenses was approximately HK$16,650,000, representing
a decrease of approximately 2.2% from approximately
HK$17,028,000 as compared with that of the preceding year.
Administrative and other expenses primarily consists of rentals for
office premises and warehousing facilities, staff costs (including
salaries to administrative staff and emoluments to Directors) and
professional expenses. The decrease was primarily due to decrease
in professional expenses.

Loss for the Year
The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$24,247,000 during
the Financial Year (2018: loss of approximately HK$27,413,000).

Significant Investments held, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of Subsidiaries, and Future Plans for Material
Investments or Capital Assets

Save as otherwise disclosed, there were neither significant
investments held as at 31 March 2019 nor material acquisitions
and disposals of subsidiaries during the Financial Year.

Save as otherwise disclosed, there is no plan for material
investments or capital assets as at the date of this annual report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS & 2 2 & 5% K& 2 T

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$7,107,000 (2018: HK$4,936,000). The gearing
ratio of the Group, calculated as total bank borrowings over total
equity, was nil as at 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil), as the Group
mainly financed the operations from internally generated funds and
had no bank borrowings as at 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil).

The Group closely monitors the cash flow position to ensure that
the Group has sufficient working capital available to fulfill its
operational requirement. The Group takes into account the trade
receivables, trade payables, cash and bank balances, administrative
and capital expenditures to prepare cash flow forecast to forecast
the Group's future liquidity.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The capital of the Group comprises only ordinary shares. As at 31
March 2019, there were 451,035,713 ordinary shares in issue.

Total equity attributable to the owners of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$21,425,000 as at 31 March 2019 (2018:
HK$45,783,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &I & 51 5% & O 4T

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 March 2019, save as otherwise disclosed, the Group did
not have any material contingent liabilities (2018: Nil).

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group undertakes certain purchase transactions denominated
in Hong Kong dollar, Euro, United States dollar and Renminbi,
hence exposure to exchange rate fluctuations arises. We are mainly
exposed to foreign exchange fluctuation of the Euro and Renminbi
against Hong Kong dollar, as Hong Kong dollar is pegged to United
States dollar. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management of the Group monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arises. The Directors
are of the view that the transactional exposure of the Group in
currencies other than the functional currencies is maintained at an
acceptable level.

Charges on Group Assets
As at 31 March 2019, there was no charges on the Group's assets
(2018: Nil).

Segment Information
The Group’s segmental information is set out in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Capital Commitments
As at 31 March 2019, the Group did not have any significant
capital commitments (2018: Nil).

Dividend
The board of Directors (the “Board”) does not recommend the
payment of any dividend for the Financial Year (2018: Nil).

Employee Information

Total remuneration of the Group for the Financial Year
(including (i) Directors’ emoluments, (ii) salaries to staff and (iii)
MPF contributions) was approximately HK$17,592,000 (2018:
HK$16,953,000).

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had 44 employees (2018: 50
employees).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu, aged 52, was appointed as an executive
Director on 26 February 2014. Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu is the chairman
of the Board and head of human resources department. Mr. Hue
Kwok Chiu is also a director of several subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu is responsible for the business development,
operations and business expansion plans and human resources
activities of the Group. Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu is the younger brother
of Mr. Hui Kwok Wing, the executive Director, and Mr. Hui Kwok
Keung Raymond, the executive Director.

Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu has over 20 years of business management
experience and obtained a Bachelor of social sciences degree from
the University of Hong Kong in December 1989.

Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond, aged 56, was appointed as
an executive Director on 26 February 2014. Mr. Hui Kwok Keung
Raymond is one of the founders and chief executive officer of the
Group. Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond is also a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond is
responsible for the business development, operations and devising
market strategy and business expansion plans of the Group. Mr.
Hui Kwok Keung Raymond is the younger brother of Mr. Hui Kwok
Wing, the executive Director, and the elder brother of Mr. Hue
Kwok Chiu, the executive Director.

Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond has over 24 years of experience in
lighting and furniture retails business in Hong Kong and obtained
a Bachelor of arts degree from the University of Hong Kong in
November 1985 and a Master of design degree from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in November 2010.

Mr. Hui Kwok Wing, aged 57, was appointed as an executive
Director on 19 June 2015. Mr. Hui Kwok Wing is the chief creative
officer of the Group and responsible for the business development
of the Group. Mr. Hui Kwok Wing is the elder brother of Mr. Hui
Kwok Keung Raymond, the executive Director, and Mr. Hue Kwok
Chiu, the executive Director.

Mr. Hui Kwok Wing has over 26 years of experience in concept
creation, product design, design management and retail business
management and obtained Bachelor of arts degree in industrial
design from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1989.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Chung Wai Man (“Mr. Chung”), aged 55, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 11 September 2014. Mr.
Chung is responsible for providing independent judgement on the
issue of strategy, performance, resources and standard of conduct
of the Group.

Mr. Chung obtained a Bachelor’'s degree (honours) in social
sciences from the University of Hong Kong in December 1989 and
a Master’s degree in international business management from the
City University of Hong Kong in November 1998.

Mr. Chung became an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants in April 1995 and a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in
the United Kingdom in November 1999.

Mr. Chung has around 29 years of experience in accounting,
taxation and finance. Mr. Chung is currently an independent
non-executive director of Net Pacific Financial Holdings Limited
(stock code: 5QY), the shares of which are listed on the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. Mr. Chung was an
independent non-executive director, from June 2015 to October
2016, the company secretary and chief financial officer, from
November 2016 to February 2017, and a non-executive director
from February 2017 to November 2017, of Legend Strategy
International Holdings Group Company Limited (stock code: 1355),
the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.
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Mr. Leung Wai Chuen (“Mr. Leung”), aged 53, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 11 September 2014. Mr.
Leung is responsible for providing independent judgement on the
issue of strategy, performance, resources and standard of conduct
of the Group.

Mr. Leung obtained a Bachelor’s degree in social sciences from
the University of Hong Kong in December 1989, a Master's
degree in business administration jointly awarded by the University
of Wales and the University of Manchester in July 2001 and a
Master’s degree in business (logistics management) from Royal
Melbourne Institute of Technology (now known as RMIT University)
in September 2007.

Mr. Leung is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants of the United Kingdom and an associate of
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators respectively.

Mr. Leung has over 28 years’ experience in auditing, accounting,
financial management and company secretarial matters. He worked
for and held senior positions in various listed companies in Hong
Kong and was responsible for their finance, accounting and
company secretarial functions. Mr. Leung is currently the non-
executive director of MOS House Group Limited (stock code: 1653)
and the company secretary of Grand Ming Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1271), those shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung Ann (“Ms. Yeung”), aged 54, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 11
September 2014. Ms. Yeung is responsible for providing
independent judgement on the issue of strategy, performance,
resources and standard of conduct of the Group.

Ms. Yeung obtained a Bachelor of arts degree in retail marketing
with honours from the Manchester Metropolitan University in the
United Kingdom in June 1994. She pursued her further study on
legal course and obtained a Diploma in legal practice from the
Manchester Metropolitan University in the United Kingdom in July
1998.

Ms. Yeung became a qualified solicitor of Hong Kong in December
2000.

Ms. Yeung has over 18 years of experience in legal field in private
practice working with various law firms in Hong Kong. Ms. Yeung
is currently an independent non-executive director of Success
Universe Group Limited (stock code: 487), the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Yeung is
currently also an independent non-executive director of Merdeka
Financial Services Group Limited (stock code: 8163), the shares
of which are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Yeung
was also an independent non-executive director of Trillion Grand
Corporate Company Limited (stock code: 8103) from March 2016
to October 2017, the shares of which are listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chou Hing Yan Stephen (“Mr. Chou”), aged 56, was an
executive Director from 26 February 2014 to 29 February 2016
and employed as senior business manager on 1 March 2016. Mr.
Chou is one of the founders of the Group and responsible for the
business, operations and marketing affairs of the Group.

Mr. Chou has over 15 years of experience in lighting and furniture
retails business in Hong Kong and obtained a Bachelor’s degree in
commerce from McMaster University of Canada in June 1987.

Mr. Wong Peng Lin (“Mr. Wong"), aged 46, is the operation
manager of the Group. Mr. Wong joined the Group on 1 December
2003. He is primarily responsible for supervising the day to day
operation of the retail stores in Hong Kong. Mr. Wong has over
15 years of experience in lighting retail business in the Group.

Mr. Chang David (“Mr. Chang”), aged 49, is the product &
logistics manager of the Group. Mr. Chang joined the Group on
3 October 2012, he is primarily responsible for overseeing the
product and logistics of the Group. Mr. Chang is also responsible
to oversee compliance with safety requirements of all lighting and
electrical products offered for sale at the retail stores, monitor
the latest development on safety requirements and enhance closer
communications between us and the suppliers in respect of the
safety and certification requirements for lighting and electrical
products in Hong Kong. Mr. Chang has over 22 years of experience
in lighting business in Hong Kong.

Mr. Lam Chi Yan (“Mr. Lam"), aged 36, is the deputy financial
controller and company secretary of the Group. Mr. Lam joined the
Group on 27 June 2014, he is primarily responsible for overseeing
the financial and daily secretarial matter of the Group.

Mr. Lam obtained a Bachelor of business administration (honours)
in accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong in November
2005 and is a member and fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since September 2008 and
March 2016 respectively. He has around 13 years of experience in
accounting, auditing, company secretarial and tax consultancy field.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the shareholders
of the Company and enhance its corporate value. The Company’s
corporate governance practices are based on the principles and
code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing
Rules (the “CG Code”). To the best knowledge of the Board, the
Company has complied with the code provisions in the CG Code
during the Financial Year.

DIRECTORS" SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for dealing in
securities of the Company by the Directors in accordance with the
required standard of dealings as set out in the Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules (the “Required Standard of Dealings”).
The Company has made specific enquiries with all Directors and
the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Required
Standard of Dealings and the code of conduct for dealing in
securities of the Company during the Financial Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board of Directors

Up to the date of this annual report, the Board comprises three
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
The composition of the Board was as follows:

Executive Directors

Hue Kwok Chiu (Chairman)

Hui Kwok Keung Raymond (Chief Executive Officer)
Hui Kwok Wing (Chief Creative Officer)

Independent non-executive Directors
Chung Wai Man

Leung Wai Chuen

Yeung Mo Sheung Ann

TEERTER

ARARBMAOBTREENDCEERREALAR
AR RFE R MBEEAABHEEEE - AD
A2 EEAFE R THILAGEM £ 8 Bl B &% 1507
HEEEARATERECEEARE(LEERT
BIN#EN 2z REIRTFABAEE - KEFD
ol RABTHRFE ARARBETLEENR
SFRIARZ ST BIME ST -

EEETESFRS

NE B M GEM L0 18 B 555,48 F5.671& AT
B2RGUNTEE(RGMTIZE]D  ERE
EEEARABLFZRTTH - ARFEHF
BEEEEBETER EZCERIAFSAATR
FEEEBTRGVTEERBEBEARAESFZ
BRSFSFA -

=g

EEZEmAm

BEAFRA EFERB=_2RTESEE=
RBEUFRITEFT - EFENAEARM T

HITES

ARSI (E/E)

FHEI 98 (7T AR 2L)
FEREFEEAE)

BYFHITES
EEX
RER
BRI



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT & A&

Functions of the Board

The principal function of the Board is to consider and approve
the overall business plans and strategies of the Group, develop
and implement the corporate governance function, monitor
the implementation of these policies and strategies and the
management of the Company. The Group has an independent
management team, which is led by a team of senior management
with substantial experience and expertise in the Group’s business
and the Board delegates the authority and responsibility for
implementing the Group's policies and strategies.

Board Meetings and Board Practices

The Directors can attend meetings in person or through other
means of electronic communication in accordance with the articles
of association of the Company (the “Articles”). All minutes of
the Board meetings were recorded in sufficient detail the matters
considered by the Board and the decisions reached.

During the Financial Year, five Board meetings and one general
meeting were held in addition to circulation of written resolutions.
Details of the attendance of Directors are as follows:
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Executive Directors
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Hue Kwok Chiu (Chairman)
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Hui Kwok Keung Raymond (Chief Executive Officer)
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Hui Kwok Wing (Chief Creative Officer)
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Independent Non-executive Directors
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Chung Wai Man

EBE X

Leung Wai Chuen
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Yeung Mo Sheung Ann
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According to the code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code, the
chairman should at least annually hold meetings with the
independent non-executive directors without the presence of other
directors. The Company complied with the code provision A.2.7 of
the CG Code that the chairman of the Board held meetings with
the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of
other Directors.
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Directors’ Appointment, Re-election and Removal
Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, the non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term.

Each of the executive Directors namely, Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu
and Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond, has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a fixed term of two years from
11 September 2018, which may be terminated by not less than
three months’ written notice served by either party on the other,
and is subject to termination provisions therein and provisions on
retirement by rotation of Directors as set out in the Articles.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a service agreement with the Company for a fixed term of two
years from 11 September 2018, which may be terminated by not
less than three months’ written notice served by either party on
the other, and is subject to termination provisions therein and
provisions on retirement by rotation of Directors as set out in the
Articles.

Mr. Hui Kwok Wing, the executive Director, has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a fixed term of two years
from 19 June 2019, which may be terminated by not less than
three months’ written notice served by either party on the other,
and is subject to termination provisions therein and provisions on
retirement by rotation of Directors as set out in the Articles.

In compliance with the code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code,
all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject
to election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment. By virtue of article 83 of the Articles, the Directors
shall have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint
any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board
or as an addition to the existing Board. Any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first
general meeting of the Company after his appointment and be
subject to re-election at such meeting. Any Director appointed by
the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In compliance with the code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code,
every director should be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. Furthermore, pursuant to article 84 of the
Articles, at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors
for the time being, (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3),
the number nearest to but not less than one third) shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three
years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election and shall
continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting at which he
retires.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has three independent non-executive Directors to
comply with Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules. Furthermore,
among the three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Chung
and Mr. Leung have appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise as required
by Rule 5.05(2) of the GEM Listing Rules. In accordance with
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has received
from each of its independent non-executive Directors the written
confirmation of his/her independence. The Company, based on
such confirmations, considers Mr. Chung, Mr. Leung and Ms. Yeung
to be independent.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

According to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
the chairman and the chief executive should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. During the Financial
Year, the role of the chairman of the Board is performed by Mr.
Hue Kwok Chiu and the office of the chief executive officer of
the Company is performed by Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond. The
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code has been complied with.

Delegation of Powers

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to
executive Directors and management of the Company with
department heads responsible for different aspects of the business/
functions, while reserving certain key matters in making strategic
decision for its approval. When the Board delegates aspects of its
management and administration functions to management, it gives
clear directions as to the powers of management, in particular,
with respect to the circumstances where management need to
report back and obtain prior approval from the Board before
making decisions or entering into any commitments on behalf of
the Company.

Continuing Professional Development

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure their
contribution to the board remains informed and relevant. The
Company has arranged and/or introduced some director’s training
courses and has provided monthly financial highlight, business
update of the Group and training materials for the Directors to
develop and explore their knowledge and skills.

During the Financial Year, all Directors have participated in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills.
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Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the
liabilities in respect of legal action against the Directors and officers
of the Company that may arise out in the corporate activities which
has been complied with the CG Code. The insurance coverage is
reviewed on an annual basis.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) was
established by the Board on 11 September 2014 with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 and 5.29 of the GEM
Listing Rules and code provision C.3.3 of the CG Code. The Audit
Committee currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors and is chaired by Mr. Leung. The other members are Mr.
Chung and Ms. Yeung. The primary duties of the Audit Committee
are mainly to oversee the relationship with the Company’s external
auditor, review the Company’s financial information and oversee
the Company’s financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the consolidated results of the
Group for the Financial Year with the management and is of the
view that such results complied with the applicable accounting
standards, the requirements under the GEM Listing Rules and other
applicable legal requirements, and that adequate disclosures had
been made.
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Five Audit Committee meetings were held in addition to circulation BTEBEEEARAZE  EREZE SN AN EE
of written resolutions during the Financial Year. Details of the BRI THIE:H ZENEZXLTESEH
attendance of members of the Audit Committee meeting are as &R FIFUT
follows:
Members Attendance
K& &
Leung Wai Chuen (Chairman) 5/5
RER(EE)
Chung Wai Man 5/5
EEX
Yeung Mo Sheung Ann 5/5
Y]
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The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit
Committee during the Financial Year:

(@) reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2018;

(b)  reviewed the unaudited consolidated financial statements for
the three months ended 30 June 2018, six months ended
30 September 2018 and nine months ended 31 December
2018;

() reviewed the Group’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems;

(d) approved the remuneration and the appointment and the
terms of engagement of the external auditor;

(e)  reviewed the external auditor’s independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of audit process in accordance with
applicable standards; and

(f)  reviewed and ensured that the internal audit function is
adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within
the Group.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
reviewed regularly by management. With the view of enhancing
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems, during
the Financial Year, the Company has engaged an independent
external consulting firm (the “Internal Control Adviser”) to review
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems and
recommend actions to improve the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.

Based on the review, the Audit Committee is of the view that
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems were
generally effective and in compliance with the requirements of the
code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code for the Financial Year in all
material respects.
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established by the Board on 11 September
2014 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG
Code. The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Chung.
The other members are Mr. Leung and Ms. Yeung. The primary
duties of the Remuneration Committee are, amongst other things,
to review and make recommendations to the Board on the terms
of remuneration packages, bonuses and other compensation
payable to the Directors and senior management and to make
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for all
remuneration of the Directors and senior management.
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Two Remuneration Committee meetings were held in addition to BTEHEERZE  FHZE8e R AU BE
circulation of written resolutions during the Financial Year. Details ER{ITTMAE:%E  2ENFWEES S &
of the attendance of the members of the Remuneration Committee & XH BT ¢
meeting are as follows:
Members Attendance
K8 i E &
Chung Wai Man (Chairman) 2/2
EREX(EE)
Leung Wai Chuen 2/2
RER
Yeung Mo Sheung Ann 2/2
CE Y

Remuneration Policy for Directors and Senior
Management

The remuneration payable to the employees includes salaries and
allowances. The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated
based on the performance of individual employees and are
reviewed regularly. Subject to the Group’s profitability, the Group
may also provide a discretionary bonus to employees as an
incentive for their contribution to the Group. The primary goal of
the remuneration policy with regard to the remuneration package
of the executive Directors is to enable the Group to retain and
motivate the executive Directors by linking his compensation with
performance as measured against corporate objectives achieved.
The executive Directors are entitled to the remuneration packages
including basic salaries and discretionary bonuses.
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The remuneration packages of the Directors were determined by
reference to their experience, duties and responsibilities in the
Company and the prevailing market rate.

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted by all shareholders by way of written
resolution on 11 September 2014. The terms of the Share Option
Scheme are in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 23 of
the GEM Listing Rules. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme
is to attract and retain the best available personnel, to provide
additional incentive to employees (full-time and part-time),
directors, consultants, advisers, distributors, contractors, suppliers,
agents, customers, business partners or service providers of the
Group (the “Eligible Participants”) and to promote the success of
the business of the Group.

The Board is authorised, at its absolute discretion and subject to
the terms of the Share Option Scheme, to grant options to the
Eligible Participants to subscribe for the shares of the Company.

The Company believes that by offering the Eligible Participants a
shareholding stake in the Company, the interests of the Eligible
Participants and the Company become aligning and thereby the
Eligible Participants have additional incentives to improve the
Company'’s performance.

Senior Management’s Remuneration
Senior management’s remuneration payment of the Group for the
Financial Year falls within the following band:
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Nomination Committee

The Board is empowered under the Articles to appoint any person
as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on or, as an additional
member of the Board. Qualified candidates will be proposed to
the Board for consideration and the selection criteria are mainly
based on the assessment of their professional qualifications and
experience. The Board selects and recommends candidates for
directorship to the shareholders having regards to the balance of
skills and experience appropriate to the Group’s business.

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was established by the Board on 11 September 2014
with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.
The Nomination Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors and is chaired by Ms. Yeung. The other
members are Mr. Chung and Mr. Leung. The primary duties of
the Nomination Committee are mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors.

One Nomination Committee meeting was held in addition to
circulation of written resolutions during the Financial Year. Details
of the attendance of the members of the Nomination Committee
meeting are as follows:
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) on 20 December 2018 to assist the Board in identifying
suitably qualified candidates and making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors as well as providing the selection
criteria and procedures adopted for making recommendations by
the Nomination Committee. A summary of the selection criteria
and procedures for recommendation and selection of candidates
for directorship is disclosed below.

Selection Criteria
In assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate, the Nomination
Committee shall consider the following factors:

(@)  Reputation for integrity;
(b)  Accomplishment, skills and experience in the industry;

(0 Commitment in respect of available time and relevant

interest; and

(d)  Diversity in all
to, gender, age,
professional qualification,
service.

its aspects, including but not limited
and educational background,
skills, knowledge and length of

cultural

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be
exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the
discretion to nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.

Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the necessary personal
information in a prescribed form, together with their written
consent to be appointed as a Director and to the public disclosure
of their personal data on any documents or the relevant websites
for the purpose of or in relation to their standing for election as
a Director.

The Nomination Committee may request candidates to provide
additional information and documents, if considered necessary.
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Nomination Procedures

The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call a meeting of
the Nomination Committee, and invite nominations of candidates
from Board members if any, for consideration by the Nomination
Committee prior to its meeting. The Nomination Committee may
also put forward candidates who are not nominated by Board
members.

For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations for the Board's consideration and approval. For
proposing candidates to stand for election at a general meeting,
the Nomination Committee shall make nominations to the Board
for its consideration and recommendation.

Until the issue of the shareholder circular, the nominated persons
shall not assume that they have been proposed by the Board to
stand for election at the general meeting.

In order to provide information of the candidates nominated
by the Board to stand for election at a general meeting, and
to invite nominations from shareholders, a circular will be sent
to shareholders. The circular will set out the lodgment period
for shareholders to make the nominations. The names, brief
biographies (including qualifications and relevant experience),
independence, proposed remuneration and any other information,
as required pursuant to the applicable laws, rules and regulations,
of the proposed candidates will be included in the circular to
shareholders.

A shareholder can serve a notice to the secretary of the Company
within the lodgement period of its intention to propose a resolution
to elect a certain person as a Director, without the Board’s
recommendation or the Director's nomination, other than those
candidates set out in the shareholder circular. The particulars of
the candidates so proposed will be sent to all shareholders for
information by a supplementary circular.

A candidate is allowed to withdraw his candidature at any time
before the general meeting by serving a notice in writing to the
secretary of the Company.

N
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The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at any general
meeting.

As there may be more candidates than the vacancies available,
and the “gross-vote” method will be used to determine who shall
be elected as a Director, shareholder proposed resolutions shall
therefore take the same form as the resolutions proposed for the
candidates recommended by the Board.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company adopted a board diversity policy and aims to set the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company seeks
to achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional qualification, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board.

For the purpose of implementation of the board diversity policy,
the following measurable objectives were adopted:

(i) at least one-third of the members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive Directors; and

(i) at least one of the members of the Board shall have obtained
accounting or other professional qualifications.

The Board has achieved the measurable objectives in the board
diversity policy for the Financial Year.

The Nomination Committee will review the board diversity policy,
as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the board diversity
policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions that
may be required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board
for consideration and approval.
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EO COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

The Electricity Ordinance (“EO”) compliance committee of the
Company (the “EO Compliance Committee”) was established by
the Board on 11 September 2014. The EO Compliance Committee
currently comprises two executive Directors and one independent
non-executive Director and is chaired by Mr. Hui Kwok Keung
Raymond. The other members are Mr. Hui Kwok Wing and Mr.
Chung. The primary duties of the EO Compliance Committee
are to oversee and monitor the Group’s compliance of EO and
other relevant regulations through regular meetings and special
meetings.
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Four EO Compliance Committee meetings were held during the B HIEM AR EZEEE RN AP HREERITT X
Financial Year. Details of the attendance of the members of the @ @ERNENKHAREES S ZHEXR
EO Compliance Committee meeting are as follows: BT :
Members Attendance
Hui Kwok Keung Raymond (Chairman) 4/4
TR ()
Hui Kwok Wing 4/4
eSS
Chung Wai Man 4/4
BIEX
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Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare the
Group's consolidated financial statements for each financial year
to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
and of its financial performance and cash flows for that financial
year. In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the
Financial Year, the Board has selected suitable accounting policies
and applied them consistently, made judgements and estimates that
are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis. The Directors
are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps to
safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities. The statement of auditor about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report. The Directors continue
to adopt the going concern approach in preparing the consolidated
financial statements and are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The remuneration paid or payable to the Company’s auditor, BDO
Limited, in respect of their audit services for the Financial Year
amounted to HK$700,000.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Goals and objectives

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems.
Such risk management and internal control systems are designed
for managing risks rather than eliminating the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Risk management policy has been established to formalise the risk
management of the Group, build up a standard and effective risk
management system and improve the ability of risk prevention,
so as to ensure the Group is operating in a safety and steady
environment, the operation management level could be increased
and the Group’s operational strategy and target could be achieved.
The current practices will be reviewed and updated regularly to
follow the latest practices in corporate governance.
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The Board has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant
authorities) of risk management and internal control to the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee (on behalf of the Board) oversees
the management in the design, implementation and monitoring of
the risk management and internal control systems for the Financial
Year.

Possible risks and uncertainties

The Group’s possible risks and uncertainties range from raw
material risk, market risk, operational risk, credit risk and financial
risk.

Business Risk

The Group’s business risks include rapid change in the general
market conditions, especially the Hong Kong retail market, and
also the downturn pressure on the overall economy of the Hong
Kong and other oversea markets. The Board is responsible for the
overall management of the business and review of material business
decisions involving material risks exposures from time to time.

Financial Risk

The Board monitors closely the Group’s foreign exchange risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Board also
reviews monthly performance, capital structure and key operating
data of the Group.

Compliance Risk

The Board monitor and ensure that the Group is in compliance
with the applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Group engages
professionals from time to time to keep abreast of the latest
developments in the regulatory environment, including legal,
financial, environmental and operational developments. The Group
also adopts a strict policy in prohibiting any unauthorised use or
dissemination of confidential or inside information.

Main features of the risk management and internal
control systems

To ensure the efficient and effective operation of the business and
operations, relevant internal control procedures have been set up
for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition,
controlling over capital expenditure, maintaining proper accounting
records and ensuring the reliability of financial information used
for business and publication. These procedures are monitored and
reviewed from time to time and updated where necessary.
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The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification
o Identifies risks that may potentially affect the key processes
of the Group’s business and operations.

Risk Assessment
o Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment criteria

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 5K &EVR % 5
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developed by the management; and

o Considers the impact on the business and the likelihood of
their occurrence.

Risk Response
o Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of the risk

assessment; and

o Determines the risk management strategies and internal
control processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

o Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk and
ensures that appropriate internal control processes are in
place;

o Revises the risk management strategies and internal control

processes in case of any significant change of situation; and

o Reports the results of risk monitoring to the management
and the Board regularly.

The Group has engaged the Internal Control Adviser to carry out
the internal audit functions by performing an annual review on the
risk management and internal control systems of the selected cycles
of the selected subsidiaries for the Financial Year. Such review is
conducted annually. The scope of review of Internal Control Adviser
included procurement cycle, inventory cycle and financial reporting
cycle for certain subsidiaries with principal activities of retail
chain business in lighting, designed label furniture and household
products in Hong Kong.
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Internal Control Adviser has reported major findings and areas for
improvement to the Company. All recommendations from Internal
Control Adviser would be followed up closely by the management
of the Group to ensure that they are implemented within a
reasonable period of time. The Group therefore considered that the
risk management and internal control processes are adequate to
meet the needs of the Group in its current business environment
and that nothing has come to its attention to cause the Board to
believe the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
are inadequate.

Based on the review, the Audit Committee is of the view that
the Group's risk management and internal control systems were
generally effective and in compliance with the requirements of
the code provision C.2.1 of CG Code for the Financial Year in all
material respects. The Company has reviewed the effectiveness of
the systems of risk management and internal control of the Group,
covering all material controls, including financial and operation for
the Financial Year.

Inside Information Disclosure Policy

To ensure timely, fair, accurate and complete disclosure of inside
information and for compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations, the Group has in place, as an internal control element,
a series of disclosure procedures of price sensitive information on
reporting and dissemination of inside information and preservation
of confidentiality. Under the inside information disclosure policy,
head of the accounting department of the Company shall report
to company secretary of the Company and Directors any potential/
suspected inside information event as soon as practicable when
it materialises for determining the nature of developments, and if
required, making disclosure. All staff are also required to observe
the code of ethical standards stated in staff handbook to keep
non-public information confidential.
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INVESTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS
The Company values communication with the shareholders
and investors of the Company. The Company uses two-way
communication channels to account to shareholders and investors
for the performance of the Company. Enquiries and suggestions
from shareholders or investors are welcomed, and enquiries from
shareholders may be put to the Board through the following
channels to the executive Directors:

1. By mail to the Company’s principal place of business at 10th
Floor, Tiffan Tower, 199 Wanchai Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong;
or

2. By email at investor@elighting.asia.

The Company uses a number of formal communication channels
to account to shareholders and investors for the performance of
the Company. These include (i) the publication of quarterly, interim
and annual reports; (ii) the annual general meeting or extraordinary
general meeting providing a forum for shareholders to raise
comments and exchange views with the Board; (iii) updating the
key information of the Group available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company; (iv) the Company’s website offering
communication channel between the Company and its shareholders
and investors; and (v) the Company’s share registrars in Hong Kong
serving the shareholders in respect of all share registration matters.

The Company aims to provide its shareholders and investors with
high standards of disclosure and financial transparency. The Board
is committed to provide clear, detailed, timely manner and on a
regular basis information of the Group to shareholders through
the publication of quarterly, interim and annual reports and/or
dispatching circulars, notices, and other announcements.
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The Company strives to take into consideration its shareholders’
views and inputs, and address shareholders’ concerns. Shareholders
are encouraged to attend the annual general meeting for which at
least 20 clear business days’ notice shall be given. The chairman
of the Board as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee, or in
their absence, the Directors are available to answer shareholders’
questions on the Group's businesses at the meeting. To comply
with code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the management will
ensure the external auditor to attend the annual general meeting to
answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation
and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and
auditor independence.

All shareholders have statutory rights to call for extraordinary
general meetings and put forward agenda items for consideration
by shareholders. According to article 58 of the Articles, any one
or more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person (the “Candidate”) for
election as a director of the Company at a general meeting, he/
she shall deposit a written notice (the “Notice”) at the Company’s
head office located at 10th Floor, Tiffan Tower, 199 Wanchai Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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The Notice shall:

(i) include the personal information of the Candidate as required
by Rule 17.50(2) of the GEM Listing Rules; and

(i)  be signed by the shareholder concerned and signed by the
Candidate indicating his/her willingness.

The period for lodgment of the Notice shall commence on the day
after the dispatch of the notice of general meeting and end no
later than seven days prior to the date of such general meeting.

In order to ensure the Company’s shareholders have sufficient time
to receive and consider the proposal of election of the Candidate as
a director of the Company without adjourning the general meeting,
shareholders are urged to submit and lodge the Notice as early as
practicable preferably at least 15 business days prior to the date
of the general meeting appointed for such election.

In order to promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains website (www.elighting.asia) which includes the latest
information relating to the Group and its businesses.

Dividend Policy

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) on
20 December 2018. The Dividend Policy aims to allow shareholders
of the Company to participate in the Company’s profits whilst
preserving the Company’s liquidity to capture future growth
opportunities.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the
dividend amount, the Board shall consider the following factors
before declaring or recommending dividends:

(@)  the Company’s actual and expected financial performance;
(b)  retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the members of the Group, together with its

subsidiaries;

(c)  the Group's working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements and future expansion plans;
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(d)  the Group's liquidity position;

(e)  general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may have
an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Group; and

(f)  other factors that the Board may considered relevant.

The payment of dividend by the Company is also subject to any
restrictions under the Cayman Islands laws and the Company’s
articles of association.

Company Secretary

Mr. Lam has been appointed as the company secretary of the
Company on 27 June 2014. During the Financial Year, Mr. Lam has
taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
accordance with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and its principal place of business in Hong Kong is
10th Floor, Tiffan Tower, 199 Wanchai Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company’s principal activity is investment holding while the
Group is principally engaged in retail chain business in lighting,
designer label furniture and household products in Hong Kong
and wholesale of tableware and giftware worldwide. The principal
activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company
are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

COMPLIANCE RELEVANT LAW AND
REGULATIONS

During the Financial Year, the Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
operations of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company maintains a high standard of corporate governance
practices. Details of the corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 20 to 40. The Directors believe the long term financial
performance as opposed to short term rewards is a corporate
governance objective. The Board would not take undue risks to
make short term gains at the expense of the long term objectives.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Financial Year
and a discussion on the Group's future business development are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 5 to 6, CEO’s
Statement on pages 7 to 8 and Management Discussion and
Analysis on pages 9 to 14 of this annual report.

Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
can be found throughout this annual report, in particular the “Risk
Management and Internal Control” section under the Corporate
Governance Report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the Financial Year and the state
of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2019 are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 60 to 131.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the Financial Year.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Financial Year are set out in note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
of this annual report, no equity-linked agreement was entered into
by the Company during the Financial Year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the Financial Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and in note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2019, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to shareholders amounted to approximately
HK$40,837,000.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that the employees, customers and business
partners (including suppliers and contractors) are key stakeholders
to the Group’s success. The Group strives to achieve corporate
sustainability through engaging its employees, providing quality
products and services to the customers, collaborating with business
partners to deliver quality sustainable products and services and
supporting the community.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Financial Year, the top five customers together
accounted for approximately 6.4% of the Group’s revenue and the
Group's largest customer accounted for approximately 3.5% of the
Group’s revenue.

During the Financial Year, the top five suppliers together accounted
for approximately 47.6% of the Group’s purchases and the Group's
largest supplier accounted for approximately 10.9% of the Group's
purchases.

During the Financial Year, none of the Directors, their close
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of
the Company's total number of shares in issue) had any interest in
these major customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS
During the Financial Year and up to the date of this annual report,
the Directors were:

Executive Directors

Hue Kwok Chiu (Chairman)

Hui Kwok Keung Raymond (Chief Executive Officer)
Hui Kwok Wing (Chief Creative Officer)

Independent non-executive Directors
Chung Wai Man

Leung Wai Chuen

Yeung Mo Sheung Ann

By virtue of article 84 of the Articles, Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu and
Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond, will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

DIRECTORS" SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors, namely Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu and
Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for a fixed term of two years from 11 September 2018, which may
be terminated by not less than three months’ written notice served
by either party on the other, and is subject to termination provisions
therein and provisions on retirement by rotation of Directors as set
out in the Articles.

Mr. Hui Kwok Wing, the executive Director, has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a fixed term of two years
from 19 June 2019, which may be terminated by not less than
three months’ written notice served by either party on the other,
and is subject to termination provisions therein and provisions on
retirement by rotation of Directors as set out in the Articles.

None of the Directors (including those proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting) has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Group within 1 year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 15 to 19.
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company (the “Chief
Executives”) in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ")), as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Required Standard of Dealings were as
follows:

s T A\

23 o
R 2 4
BEX
B
8 4
e
i 5

L
T

L
T
B

—F —

— =

=

NF=RA=+—H ARAEEIE
ZTBAB(EZTBRABDRARA S EME
AEEZE(EERBLZRBERITESFR
HIE DI FEXVED BBy - HERE A M (B
AEF A AREESF NP E KRG F352E R E
i 4 7 2 & " i B9 A2 8% ‘METF X 5 Wi ST IR 2
AHMEARNRAR MBI Em AR

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company REATEBERNEFR
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name Capacity/Nature of interests securities shareholding
" E BokEEME HHHBE RESLASL
Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond Interest in controlling corporation 210,000,000 46.56%
B 58 ST A4 REEEER (Note 1)
(Bt aED)
Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu Beneficial Owner 45,000,000 9.98%
FFE 8 5 A& EREAA
Note: B 5T

() These shares are held by Time Prestige Ventures Limited, a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of the

Directors or the Chief Executives had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Required Standard of Dealings.

(1) ZZR B HATime Prestige Ventures Limited (—
MATERTEL2ERBENRANDESR -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2019, to the best of the knowledge of the
Directors and the Chief Executives and based on the public records
filed on the website of the Stock Exchange and records kept by
the Company, the interests and short positions of the persons or
corporations (other than the Directors and the Chief Executives) in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name Capacity/Nature of interests securities shareholding
%" E BokEZEME HHHBE KRESLASL
Time Prestige Ventures Limited Beneficial Owner 210,000,000 46.56%

EREAAN
Ms. Ng Hiu Ying (Note 1) Interest of spouse 45,000,000 9.98%
e 38 22+ (MY aE1) (KR ¥
Note: B 5

Q) Ms. Ng Hiu Ying is the spouse of Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu. Under the SFO,
Ms. Ng Hiu Ying is deemed to be interested in the same number
of shares in which Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu is interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, no person or
corporation (other than the Directors and the Chief Executives) who
had any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to the
Eligible Participants and to promote the success of the business of
the Group.

The Company conditionally adopted the Share Option Scheme on
11 September 2014 whereby the Board is authorised, at its absolute
discretion and subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme,
to grant options to the Eligible Participants to subscribe for the
shares of the Company. The Share Option Scheme will be valid and
effective for a period of ten years commencing from the date of
adoption of the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the total number of shares in issue upon the date of the
shares of the Company listed on GEM, being 40,000,000 shares
(or such numbers of shares as shall result from a subdivision or
a consolidation of such 40,000,000 shares from time to time)
(the “Scheme Limit”). Subject to shareholders’ approval in general
meeting, the Board may (i) renew this limit at any time to 10%
of the total number of shares in issue as at the date of the
approval by the shareholders in general meeting; and/or (ii) grant
options beyond the Scheme Limit to Eligible Participants specifically
identified by the Board.

The number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the total number
of shares in issue from time to time. No options shall be granted
under any schemes of the Company (including the Share Option
Scheme) if this will result in the limit being exceeded.

The total number of shares issuable upon exercise of the options
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company to each Eligible Participant in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares
in issue. Any further grant of options is subject to shareholders’
approval in general meeting with such Eligible Participant and his
associates abstaining from voting.

N
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board
may determine which shall not exceed 10 years from the date of
grant subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The
amount payable by the grantee of an option to the Company on
acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the participants may
subscribe for the shares of the Company on exercise of an option
at the price determined by the Board provided that it shall be at
least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant,
which must be a business day; (ii) the average of the closing prices
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the share.

As at 31 March 2019, the total number of shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme is 40,000,000 shares, representing
approximately 8.87% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company. Since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme, no share
option has been granted by the Company.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Financial Year was the
Company, or any of its holding companies or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors and the Chief
Executives (including their spouses and children under 18 vyears
of age) to hold any interests or short positions in the shares, or
underlying shares, or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Financial Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as required by the GEM Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS" MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE COMPANY'S BUSINESS

Save as otherwise disclosed, no transactions, arrangements and
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company, its holding companies, or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or the Director’s
connected party had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the Financial Year or at any time during
the Financial Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles provides that every Director, is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto
provided that such indemnity shall not extend to any matter in
respect of fraud or dishonesty which may attach to the Director.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability

insurance throughout the Financial Year, which provides appropriate
cover for the Directors.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the Financial Year.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The controlling shareholders, namely Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond
and the company through which he holds equity interests in
the Company, namely, Time Prestige Ventures Limited, have
entered into a deed of non-competition with the Company on
11 September 2014. The details of the deed of non-competition
have been disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 22
September 2014.

The controlling shareholders have confirmed the Company that they
had complied with the non-competition undertakings during the
Financial Year. The Board (including the independent non-executive
Directors) has reviewed and confirmed the compliance with the
non-competition undertakings by the controlling shareholders.

COMPETING INTERESTS
As at 31 March 2019, none of the Directors, the substantial
shareholders of the Company and their respective close associates
(as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) has any interests in a business
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The “related party transactions” as disclosed in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year did not
constitute a connected transaction or a continuing connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

There are no other non-exempt connected and continuing
connected transactions during the Financial Year.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

Particulars of retirement benefits plans of the Group as at 31
March 2019 are set out in note 4(m)(i) to the consolidated financial
statements.
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CONFIRMATION INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considered that all the independent
non-executive Directors were independent during the Financial Year.

COMPLIANCE ADVISER'S INTERESTS

After the completion of the engagement of Ample Capital Limited
as the compliance adviser of the Company in compliance with Rule
6A.19 of the GEM Listing Rules on 30 June 2017, the Company
did not have compliance adviser.

ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

The Group is committed to the sustainable development of
the environment and the society. The Group has endeavoured
to comply with laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection and adopted effective environmental policies to ensure
its projects meet the required standards and ethics in respect of
environmental protection.

The Group aims to capture the flourishing LED market, by
monitoring the latest development of policies for LED products and
providing customers with more eco-friendly and cost-effective LED
products. The Group has also assembled the product portfolio in
order that the majority of the lighting appliance products to be
LED compatible, and the Group has designated several of existing
retail shops as LED specialty stores which primarily showcase LED
lighting appliance products.

Moreover, the Group has been participating in the “Fluorescent
Lamp Recycling Programme”, which provides households with free
collection and treatment for all used mercury-containing lamps
to reduce the environmental risk from improper disposal of these
lamps and recover resources.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as otherwise disclosed, the Group does not have any material
subsequent event after the reporting period and up to the date of
this annual report.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY MBREE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the AREBEE BEMBEBHERNAFERE132
Group is set out in the financial summary on page 132 of this B ZHBEHER -

annual report.

AUDITOR % B R

The consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year have ABBEEGAVEREACHET AL EESS
been audited by BDO Limited who will retire and, being eligible, FTEIZEHEAERATERZ  EEREETITA
offer itself for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment EREEEF - AR FBEREERRAEAS
of BDO Limited as the auditor of the Company is to be proposed HEZF N AZRBEE LSV EZEZS:/S

at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. BERERARIEER/RARAE 2 ZEHD -
By Order of the Board REEEW

E Lighting Group Holdings Limited ERAKEEEZERERAA

Hue Kwok Chiu = B £

Chairman *E

Hong Kong, 19 June 2019 B ZE-hERATIA
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

18 M 1% BUAD &

|IBDO

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
EEE - +852 2218 8288 EHTER11158
{88 : +852 2815 2239 IKZHI>2518

www.bdo.com.hk

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF E Lighting Group Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of e Lighting
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 60 to 131, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 March 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

N

52

" E Lighting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

N

HERASHERERATRR
(RESHEZMA L EFRLA)

=R
BHMEEIIE N EORI1NE S RAEEE K
ERARTERADEEWMB AR (MEIES
BONEEMBEHRER  BER-_F-NLF=A
St HNRAMBRAREBEEZALFE
Mirekak Hb2HRER SaEzED
mEFARERER  URESMBHRKRMH T
(BREITESHBEBRE) -

BMRR ZEEREMBBRREREE LS
g ((BESAMAG)BEMOFT RSB R
SENEEMAFERR EEER_F-A
FZA=ZT - HNEA/RMBARN  REBEZX
ALFEENSEAMBRARGARERE I

RERNE®R
BRACRETESFMASHMNE BT E
AT R (BAEMELD - RAIERFE
AN AN BT EARSE X A0 TG &
EMBHmRAAENEE] —BTIFE—FE
o RBEEBGFMASEMO(EXGHENE
mrADTERSsN) ZMABLY E5EH -
YERBEERTHNETHMGBRET - RMA
E BRMCEGHNENEREREARCLREBEELAS
BT RRHEER -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ¥8 37 #% & Bl 45 &

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Impairment assessment of Goodwiill
(Refer to Note 17 Goodwill and Note 5 Critical Accounting
Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty)

The balance of goodwill was fully impaired in the consolidated
statements of financial position as of 31 March 2019. The
goodwill recorded relates to the acquisition of Trendmall Group,
100% owned by the Company, during the year ended 31 March
2016, for which the amount of consideration was approximately
HK$44,717,000. The carrying amount of goodwill was entirely
allocated to the acquired workforce and the existing operations of
Trendmall Group that were expected to benefit from the synergies
of the acquisition and is subject to an annual impairment test. The
impairment test requires significant management judgement to
determine the recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit (CGU),
which is based on the value in use calculation with respect to
the pre-tax discount rate and underlining cash flows, in particular,
future revenue growth rate and operating costs based on the
business plans approved by the management for the following year.

A provision for impairment of approximately HK$19,817,000 in
respect of the goodwill was recorded for the year ended 31 March
2019.

We identified the impairment assessment of goodwill as a key
audit matter because the assessment of the significant degree of
judgment and estimation made by management.
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Impairment assessment of Goodwill (continued)
Our responses:

N

Obtained, understood and evaluated management’s
methodology for impairment and value in use calculations;

Assessed the reasonableness of key assumptions used in
the calculation of discounted future cash flows such as the
pre-tax discount rate, revenue growth rate and operating
cost structure, by reference to management’s forecast, the
Group’s past performance and our knowledge of the Group's
business and industry, taking into consideration the Group’s
strategy to shift its emphasis to low cost strategy and a
challenging business environment the entire industry has to
face;

Agreed key assumptions with supporting evidence, such as
approved budgets, upon which forecasts were based and
of which we evaluated the reasonableness to be used as a
basis of future cash flows, in particular, for the CGU that had
lower headroom between the carrying value and the value
in use;

Tested mathematical accuracy of the calculation of value in
use derived from each discounted future cash flow; and

Evaluated the appropriateness of the related disclosures
including those relating to the key assumptions and
sensitivities.
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Inventory valuation
(Refer to Note 18 Inventories and Note 5 Critical Accounting
Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty)

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had inventories of approximately
HK$10,382,000 net of provision, with details being disclosed in
note 18 to the consolidated financial statements. We had identified
inventory valuation as a key audit matter as impairment on
inventories was subject to significant management judgment and
the amount involved was significant.

Our responses:

- Obtained and analysed the aging of inventories and discussed
with the management of the Company whether, and if so,
how much impairment should be required for slow-moving
inventories;

- Performed on a sample basis a comparison between costs
of inventories and the estimated net realisable value of the

inventories; and

- Checked on a sample basis the costs of inventories.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’" RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of
our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

misstatement when

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the

consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

N
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From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine BB FEBNEEFB - PR E WL FIE Y
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the AHIGAMBEBRERNBIZAEE  AMERK
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are BAISEEFFE1E o F IS & % BUAD R & 8 i 3%
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 5 F18 > BIFARI AR TR H A FEHEIE
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure HAFFE  HEBHERNBERT @ WA IE
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we FEHIGERMBRERBEREZEFTEMEKNEmME
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report RE¥ERBBEEANARF G A ITeE
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably I ZEBE R FHERER B BLEE -

be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

BDO Limited ERVCEZENMEKHMERATE
Certified Public Accountants BESEED

Chow Tak Sing, Peter JB 1 gt

Practising Certificate Number P04659 3 7 Z 4R 57 P04659

Hong Kong, BB

19 June 2019 —ZE-AFXRATNA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

rEEm 1’@%@4&

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z-F— N F=H=+—HIFFE

2019 2018

—E-NEF —E—N\EF

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

B 5 FET FET

Revenue = 7 78,765 81,725

Cost of sales & KR (36,399) (41,647)

Gross profit E H 42,366 40,078

Other income, gains and losses Emg A = KkEiE 8 (21,538) (17,125)

Selling and distribution expenses HERDHMAX (28,863) (33,584)

Administrative and other expenses THREEMAS (16,650) (17,028)

Loss before tax & T4 B s 18 9 (24,685) (27,659)

Income tax credit FrisHik e 12 438 246
Loss and total comprehensive income for ANRA | #E B A JELL EE
the year attributable to EEREEANRGZRE

the owners of the Company (24,247) (27,413)

Loss per share BRERE 13
- Basic and diluted (HK cents) —E AR EE OB (5.38) (6.08)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

wm

B IR AR R &

As at 31 March 2019 R=—ZFE—hF=H=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FE T FE T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERRE 15 1,069 1,255
Intangible assets mEEE 16 — 3,485
Goodwill EES 17 — 19,817
Rental deposits HEZe 19 2,806 3,769
Deferred tax assets EIERIBE E 22 258 346
Total non-current assets IRBEELE 4,133 28,672
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 18 10,382 12,433
Trade and other receivables JE U R IB N E At e Uk FR0E 19 7,403 7,153
Tax recoverable CIRL QIR o] 44 367
Cash and bank balances Be MIRITH 7107 4,936
Total current assets mENEEBRE 24,936 24,889
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables JESH 3R T8 N E A FE S AR 20 6,055 7,069
Contract liabilities aHaE 21 1,409 —
Current tax liabilities BNHABIIE B E 178 124
Total current liabilities R BEERE 7,642 7,193
Net current assets REBEEFE 17,294 17,696
Total assets less current liabilities EEHERARBER 21,427 46,368
Non-current liabilities rEFRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIBEAE 22 2 585
NET ASSETS EERE 21,425 45,783
EQUITY EE
Share capital fig A 23 4,510 4,510
Reserves i 16,915 41,273
TOTAL EQUITY EZEE 21,425 45,783

On behalf of the Board
RERESZ

Hue Kwok Chiu (3F B &)
Director %

Hui Kwok Keung Raymond (F Bl 7%)
Director &%

srpzEeRaRAd —2-r5ss @ 61



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY
NTTT Y E

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &t ZE —F — N F=H=+—HIFEZ

Retained
Other earnings/
Share Share reserve  (Accumulated Total
capital premium (note) losses) equity
Hitfktg HREEAN
(& R 17 % B (B L) (REtE#R) ErmAE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER THERT THERT THERT
As at 1 April 2017 RZE—+FNA—H 4,510 67,066 2 1,618 73,196
Loss and total comprehensive  FEEBERZE N B
income for the year - - - (27,413) (27,413)
As at 31 March 2018, as RZZE—-\&=R=+—H
originally presented (RREZT) 4,510 67,066 2 (25,795) 45,783
Initial application of HKFRS 9 B AEREAM K @RS
(note 2(a)) SE R E9%% (M1 5t 2(a)) - - - (111) (1)
Restated balance as at RZZE-\FMA—H
1 April 2018 (lEEH &) 4,510 67,066 2 (25,906) 45,672
Loss and total comprehensive FEBRER
income for the year ZHEHN R EE - - - (24,247) (24,247)
As at 31 March 2019 RZZ-NE=A=+—H 4,510 67,066 2 (50,153) 21,425

Note: B 7 -

The other reserve of the Group represents the difference between the AEBEHMEFHEEAATEHITROEEEAEER
nominal value of shares issued by the Company and the aggregate nominal —ZT—WMEALANBABNEBRZTAMKEBERE A
value of the issued share capital of subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a BB /TR AT EAE Y =58 -

group reorganisation which became effective on 8 September 2014.




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 0F CASH FLOWS
EHRERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 Bi2=—F— /L F=H=+—HIF&E

an\

2019 2018
—F-hF —N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT FHET
Cash flows from operating activities REKLETBNEERE
Loss before tax B B A1 &5 48 (24,685) (27,659)
Adjustments for: HTIFIHEELARE:
Impairment loss on goodwill AEREERE 19,817 17,089
Impairment loss on intangible assets EEEERBEERE 1,877 -
Impairment loss on property, plant and M- MEREZBERERISE
equipment 20 -
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BMEREEBENITE
equipment 585 1,052
Loss on disposal of property, plant and BEEMXE WMEREZENESIE
equipment - 179
Amortisation of intangible assets mEEERH 1,608 1,608
Expected credit losses on trade receivables JEWFIE 2B HIZ B E 1B 55 -
Interest income 2 WA (1 (6)
Operating cash flows before working EEESBBAZKRERER
capital changes (724) (7,737)
Decrease in inventories FEmD 2,051 1,668
Decrease in trade and other receivables JE W R IA K H b jE U IR R 547 2,428
Decrease in trade and other payables JE A SR8 K B M JE ST 3R IB R (1,014) (3,111)
Increase in contract liabilities EHBEEEM 1,409 -
Cash used in operations KEMANRS 2,269 (6,752)
Income tax refund/(paid) 2R E )8R 320 (227)
Net cash used in operating activities RETHIARSFE 2,589 (6,979)
Cash flows from investing activities RETBHFRERERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWX - BEX KX #E (419) (1,133)
Net cash used in investing activities REZTHFANA S FHE (419) (1,133)

srpzEeRaRAE —2-r5ss @ 63



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS # &R &hE8R
For the year ended 31 March 2019 Bl Z=F— N F=H=+—HIFFZE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cash flows from financing activities RETBFRESREERE
Interest received BB 1 6
Net cash generated from financing RMETBHRERSTH
activities 1 6
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRESEEY
cash equivalents 'Ol D) R 8 2,171 (8,106)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning H{Z2HERREZEEY
of year 4,936 13,042
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRZESRESZEEY
year 7,107 4,936
Analysis of the balances of cash and ReRBSEEYES DN
cash equivalents:
Cash and bank balances Be MIBITEE 7,107 4,936

N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i a BB IR AR I R

CORPORATE INFORMATION

E Lighting Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability on 29 November 2013 under the Companies Law.
Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. The address of the Company’s registered office and principal
place of business are disclosed in the Corporate Information section
of this annual report.

The Company's issued shares have been listed on GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) since 29
September 2014 (the “Listing”).

The directors consider the Company’s parent and ultimate parent
is Time Prestige Venture Limited, a company incorporated in British
Virgin Islands (“BVI").

The Company's principal activity is investment holding while the
Group is principally engaged in retail chain business in lighting,
designer label furniture and household products in Hong Kong and
wholesale of tableware, giftware and other trading worldwide. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — Effective
1 April 2018
In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time
for following new/revised HKFRSs and amendments issued
by HKICPA which is relevant to and effective for the Group’s
financial statements for annual period beginning on 1 April

2018:
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers
Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)

Amendments to
HKFRS 15

NAEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3T

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (continued)

(a)

A.

2. KMBEBUBRRELEN(EE
Eﬂ%i&%‘/—?‘EEUJ)@

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — Effective () WG RETEBUBERS
1 April 2018 (continued) ZRH-—Z2-NFEA—HA%£¥w
HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments A. BERUBREEAEIR — €@
ITH
HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition ERMBHREEANFEIFR T —\F
and Measurement for annual periods beginning on or after *H*E&Zfﬁﬁﬂﬁ“ﬁ’]ifﬁ@%ﬁ MREH
1 January 2018, bringing together all three aspects of the EETEAIEIR e/ T A - R KA
accounting for financial instruments: (i) classification and 2 /\@Fémﬂlﬂgaﬂ'ZFﬁﬁ:flﬁE'
measurement; (i) impairment and (i) hedge accounting. WKt E  Gi)RE MG g h e
The adoption of HKFRS 9 from 1 April 2018 has resulted in B N\ENA—- Et%?ﬂ?%ﬂﬁ%
changes in accounting policies of the Group and the amounts HAEER FIW S A EEH T 5 BZ%&
recognised in the consolidated financial statements. BEVBREBEANSBHEZY
The following table summarised the impact, net of tax, of TREIEEEF BN K REERE
transition to HKFRS 9 on the opening balance of accumulated BN N\FONA-HEFERE
losses as of 1 April 2018 as follows: FUEROTZEMHBERE) WOT
HK$'000
T T
Accumulated losses 2 EE
Accumulated losses as at 31 March 2018 R—_ZE—N\F=ZA=+—8%2
2itEBE 25,795
Increase in expected credit losses in trade receivables FEW R IE 2 FEER(E B RS 1B 3L N
(note 2(a)A(ii) below) (T 3B 5 2(a)Aii) 1M1
Restated accumulated losses as at 1 April 2018 RZE-N\FHNA-—BZ&E
B ki 25,906
(i) Classification and measurement of financial () Z=HTAMSHERGE

instruments

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities
from HKAS 39. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the
requirements in HKAS 39 for the derecognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities.
it eliminates the previous HKAS 39 categories for
financial assets of held-to-maturity financial assets,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets. The adoption of HKFRS 9 has no material
impact on the Group’s accounting policies related to
financial liabilities and derivative financial instruments
as there are no such financial instruments of the Group.
The impact of HKFRS 9 on the Group’s classification
and measurement of financial assets is set out below.

However,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continue)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — Effective
1 Aprll 2018 (continued)

A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

(1)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (continued)

Under HKFRS 9, except for certain trade receivables
(that the trade receivables do not contain a significant
financing component in accordance with HKFRS 15), an
entity shall, at initial recognition, measure a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"),
transaction costs. A financial asset is classified as:
(i) financial assets at amortised cost (“amortised
cost”); (ii) financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"); or (iii) FVTPL. The
classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is
generally based on two criteria: (i) the business model
under which the financial asset is managed and (ii)
its contractual cash flow characteristics (the “solely
payments of principal and interest” criterion, also
known as “SPPI criterion”). Under HKFRS 9, embedded
derivatives is no longer required to be separated from
a host financial asset. Instead, the hybrid financial
instrument is assessed as a whole for the classification.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and it has not
been designated as at FVTPL:

o It is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

. The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that meet
the SPPI criterion.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & B7 75 3 3% B 3T

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BB B EREEAN(ES

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (ontinued) B 7% 3% &5 ZE Al Do
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — Effective (a) HMpHFE LEITEBHBERE
1 April 2018 (continued) A -—FE-NFEA-BER@w
A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued) A. BEMBHREENFEIR - =@
T HEu
(i) Classification and measurement of financial () THTASERIZ@®
instruments (continued)
Amortised cost would be applied to the Group’s BEKABERARAEEN S R
financial assets. Financial assets at amortised cost are BE -REHEKAAAENERE
subsequently measured using the effective interest rate EHBGERAERMNEEFTE o F
method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and BIUA - HMNETE H Wz & g 18 A
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. ERBRERERER KRIEBAL
Any gains or losses on derecognition are recognised in ERRRKEERIBERER -

profit or loss.

The following table summarises the original TERBAAESER_ZT—N\FN
measurement categories under HKAS 39 and the new A—ANSEEaREERESR D
measurement categories under HKFRS 9 for each class FETERIFEIRMRE 28R
of the Group's financial assets as at 1 April 2018: RIRE R BV B R EEAFEIRE
Bt B
Carrying Carrying
amount as at amount as at
Original classification New classification 1 April 2018 1 April 2018
Financial assets under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9 under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9
REERET RESBUERS
B 5395 I SE9%
REEFESTER REERUBRE R-ZE-N\F RZE-N\F
cREE E39RHMREE R ZREIEMHERN NA-HNEHEE NA-ANKREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET TAT
Trade and other receivables  Loans and receivables ~ Amortised cost 7117 7117
ERFEREMERRE EBERRERTE B KR
Cash and bank balances Loans and receivables  Amortised cost 4,936 4,936

RITEHRERE B R B R S PR
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continue)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — Effective
1 Aprll 2018 (continued)

A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has changed the Group's
impairment model by replacing the HKAS 39 “incurred
loss model” to the "expected credit losses (“ECLs")
model”. HKFRS 9 requires the Group to recognise ECLs
for trade receivables, other receivables and financial
assets at amortised costs, earlier than HKAS 39. Cash
and cash equivalents are subject to ECLs model but
the impairment is immaterial for the current year.

Under HKFRS 9, the loss allowances are measured on
either of the following bases: (1) 12-month ECLs: these
are ECLs that result from possible default events within
12 months after the reporting date; and (2) lifetime
ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an
approximation to the assets’ original effective interest
rate.

The Group’s significant financial assets which
are subject to the new ECLs model include trade
receivables and other receivables. The Group modified
its impairment methodology under HKFRS 9 for these
classes of financial assets.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — Effective

1 Aprll 2018 (continued)
A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Measurement of ECLs (continued)

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for
trade receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach
and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

For other receivables, the ECLs are based on the
12-month ECLs. The 12-month ECLs is the portion
of the lifetime ECLs that results from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. However, when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on the lifetime
ECLs. When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Group's
historical experience and informed credit assessment
and including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 180
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default

when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit

obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by
the Group to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or
past due.

(2) the financial asset is more than 12 months
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & Bf 7 3R 3% Mt 5%

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. ,.m%.f\, MR EER(E B
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued) ,\ﬂ%#& 2 B o
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - Effective (a) %%ﬁiﬂaﬂ/ﬁ‘“ ST B R KRS
1 April 2018 (continued) B -—F-N\FOA-BERmw
A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued) A. EBHKEBREERFEIR — €@
THEmw
(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued) () ZHEEFE

AHEEERNTE®
EEFEMCERERSMERE 2
ERPHZRAEHEERE SRR
ZEREAHEME -

Measurement of ECLSs (continued)

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

Presentation of ECLs EHEEBENZ

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at LNEEXATFTENEZREEN
amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying EEBHENEENAREESN
amount of the assets. Bk o

Impact of the ECLs model EHEEFBEEINE
(@ Impairment of trade receivables @  JEHKTE R A

As mentioned above, the Group applies the
HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
ECLs which recognises lifetime ECLs for all
trade receivables. To measure the ECLs, trade

AN E XA - AR e
&7 W5 s R R S 957
LEFEEHEREEE
WP B R R TR R IR

receivables have been grouped based on shared NIEEBEEEIE - B2
credit risk characteristics and the days past due. FEHEEEE  ERZE
ERBELXEEERREH
N@HBgSHE -
The loss allowance as at 1 April 2018 was RZTE—NEFEWUA—HERK
determined for trade receivables as follows: FIBZEEBRHEETOT
1-180 181-365 Past due
days past  days past more than
1 April 2018 —E-\fMmA-A yet due due due 12 months Total
g AE A8
R H 1-1808  181-365H 1218 A a3
ECLs rate (%) AHEEBEE%) 1 50 100
Gross carrying amount BEEETET
(HK$'000) 321 42 84 770
Loss allowance (HK$'000) BREETEL) 3) (21) (84) (111

srpzEeRaRAd —2-hsss @ 71




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — Effective
1 Aprll 2018 (continued)
A. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Impact of the ECLs model (continued)

(a) Impairment of trade receivables (continued)
The increase in loss allowance for trade
receivables upon the transition to HKFRS 9 as
at 1 April 2018 were HK$111,000. The loss
allowances further increased for HK$55,000
for trade receivables during the year ended 31
March 2019.

(b)  Impairment of other financial assets
Other financial assets at amortised cost of the
Group include other receivables. Applying the
ECLs model, no additional impairment for other
receivables as at 1 April 2018 is recognised.

(i) Hedge accounting
Hedge accounting under HKFRS 9 has no impact
on the Group as the Group does not apply hedge
accounting in its hedging relationships.

(ilv)  Transition

The Group has applied the transitional provision in
HKFRS 9 such that HKFRS 9 was generally adopted
without restating comparative information. The
reclassifications and the adjustments arising from
the new ECLs rules are therefore not reflected in
the statement of financial position as at 31 March
2018, but are recognised in the statement of financial
position on 1 April 2018. This means that differences
in the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities resulting from the adoption of HKFRS 9 are
recognised in retained earnings and reserves as at 1
April 2018. Accordingly, the information presented
for the financial year ended 31 March 2018 does not
reflect the requirements of HKFRS 9 but rather those
of HKAS 39.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (continued)

(a)

B.

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — Effective
1 Aprll 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition
framework. The core principle of the framework is that an
entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services. HKFRS 15
supersedes existing revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and
related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance

obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular revenue
related topics that may change the current approach taken
under HKFRS. The standard also significantly enhances the
qualitative and quantitative disclosures related to revenue.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the customer
obtains control of the promised goods or services in the
contract. HKFRS 15 identifies 3 situations in which control
of the promised goods or services is regarded as being
transferred over time:

(a) when the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity's
performance as the entity performs;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — Effective
1 Aprll 2018 (continued)
B. HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (continued)
(b)  when the entity’s performance creates or enhances an
asset (for example, work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

(©) when the entity’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the entity and the entity
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not fall into
any of these 3 situations, then under HKFRS 15, the entity
recognises revenue for the sale of those goods or services
at a single point in time, being when control has passed.
Transfer of risks and rewards of ownership is only one of the
indicators that will be considered in determining when the
transfer of control occurs.

Nature of the goods, satistaction of performance
obligations and payments

The Group sells lighting and furniture products and tableware
and giftware products. Revenue is recognised when control of
the products has been transferred, being when the products
are delivered to the customer and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of
the products. Delivery occurs when the products have been
shipped to the specific location, the risks of obsolescence
and loss have been transferred to the customer, and the
customer has accepted the products in accordance with the
sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the
Group has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance
have been satisfied. There is generally only one performance
obligation in the contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — Effective
1 Aprll 2018 (continued)
B. HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (continued)
Nature of the goods, satistaction of performance
obligations and payments (continued)
A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as
this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional
because only the passage of time is required before the
payment is due. Invoices are usually payable within 30 days.

Right of return

Some of the Group's contracts with customers provide
customers a right of return (a full or partial refund of any
consideration paid or an exchange of another product after
the arrival of the products at the destination but before the
usage of the products).

Nature of change in accounting policy and impact
Right of return

Under HKAS 18, revenue for these contracts was recognised
when a reasonable estimate of the returns could be made,
provided that all other revenue recognition criteria are met. If
a reasonable estimate could not be made, such revenue would
be deferred until the return period lapsed or a reasonable
estimate could be made.

Under HKFRS 15, right of return gives rise to variable
consideration. The variable consideration is estimated at
contract inception and constrained until the associated
uncertainty is subsequently resolved. The application of the
constraint on variable consideration increases the amount of
revenue that will be deferred. In addition, a refund liability
and a right to recover returned goods assets are recognised.

The Group concluded that the impact of refund liability from
the right of return was insignificant as at 1 April 2018.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers from 1 April 2018 which resulted in changes
in accounting policies. In accordance with the transitional
provisions in HKFRS 15, comparative figures have not been
restated.
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(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & 81 7% 3R 2% Y 5
ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. R4 %.5;‘ ,ﬂ%iﬁ%ﬁﬂwaﬁ;‘%
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (ontinued) ,Mﬂl% E’E— D
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — Effective (a) #E#H BIETEARMBERS
1 April 2018 (continued) EEJ —g )\EIH EEZNEY)
B. HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with B. §}%,\15§$ﬁ%1’%5\u%15%—%ﬁ5
Customers (continued) é :%’J E’J l‘l& A
Nature of change in accounting policy and impact 2 AR E 55577/-’-7’] 1B R
(continued)
Impact on the consolidated statement of financial position as RZZE-N\FOA-—BHEEVBERR
at 1 April 2018 (increase/(decrease)): TM BN CRD)) -
At 31 March Effect of At 1 April
2018 under adoption of 2018 under
HKAS 18 HKFRS 15 HKFRS 15
BREFBE REEBHE
% B 1857 EREBHE HEEAEISHE
RZZ-N\F HEEREIH RZE-N\F
=A=+-—H HmEeg mA—H
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
F& T FHT FHET
Contract liabilities ENEaE - 768 768
Trade and other payables JE < 5018 I Hth FE N FRIR 7,069 (768) 6,301
The Group assessed the impacts of adopting HKFRS 15 on its NEE R RN E BB & £ R
financial statements. Based on the assessment, the adoption FISREEMBHREROTE - RIFBEGT
of HKFRS 15 has no significant impact on the Group’s revenue o RAMBE BB EER ISR E K
recognition. SFENWABERIEEATE -
HK(IFRIC) - Int 22 — Foreign Currency C. EBEERMBHRERRES

Transactions and Advance Consideration

The interpretation provides guidance on determining the date
of the transaction for determining an exchange rate to use
for transactions that involve advance consideration paid or
received in a foreign currency and the recognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability. The Interpretations
specifies that the date of the transaction for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income (or part thereof) is the
date on which the entity initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the payment or
receipt of advance consideration.

The adoption of this interpretation does not have any material
impact on the financial position and the financial result of
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (continued)

(a)

D.

(b)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — Effective
1 Aprll 2018 (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 15 — Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications on
identification of performance obligations, application of
principal versus agent, licenses of intellectual property and
transition requirements.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on these
financial statements as the Group had not previously adopted
HKFRS 15 and took up the clarifications in this, its first, year.

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the
Group's financial statements, have been issued, but are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2019. The Group’s current
intention is to apply these changes on the date they become
effective.

HKFRS 16 Leases'

HK(IFRIC) — Int23 Uncertainty Over Income Tax

Treatments'

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income
Taxes'

Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

Amendments to Definition of Material?

HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8

Amendments to Prepayment Features with Negative
HKFRS 9 Compensation'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (continued)
(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continueq)
HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

for the

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases
are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have
to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-
term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and losses,
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The

impairment

lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently,
the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments,
as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others.
For the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents operating lease payments as operating cash flows.
Under the HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease
liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest
portion which will be presented as financing cash flows.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either
as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)
HKFRS 16 — Leases (continued)

As set out in note 25, the total operating lease commitment
of the Group in respect of rented offices, retail shops and
warehouse as at 31 March 2019 amounted to HK$19,318,000
in which HK$19,139,000 were with original lease term
over 1 year. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease under HKFRS
16, and hence the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
at its present value upon the application of HKFRS 16. The
combination of straight-line depreciation of the right-of-use
asset and the effective interest rate method applied to the
lease liability will result in a higher total charge to the profit or
loss in the initial years of the lease, and decreasing expenses
during the latter part of the lease term, but there is no impact
on the total expenses recognised over the lease term.

The directors of the Group do not expect the adoption of
HKFRS 16, as compared to the current accounting policy of
the Group, would result in significant impact on the Group’s
financial position and financial performance in future. These
estimates are based on accounting policies, assumptions,
judgements and estimation techniques that may be subject to
change until the Group finalises its financial statements for
the year ending 31 March 2020.

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 — Uncertainty Over Income
Tax Treatments

The interpretation supports the requirements of HKAS 12,
Income Taxes, by providing guidance over how to reflect the
effects of uncertainty in accounting for income taxes.

Under the Interpretation, the entity shall determine whether to
consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together
based on which approach better predicts the resolution of
the uncertainty. The entity shall also assume the tax authority
will examine amounts that it has a right to examine and have
full knowledge of all related information when making those
examinations. If the entity determines it is probable that the
tax authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, then the
entity should measure current and deferred tax in line with its
tax filings. If the entity determines it is not probable, then the
uncertainty in the determination of tax is reflected using either
the “most likely amount” or the “expected value” approach,
whichever better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle -— Amendments to HKAS 12, Income
Taxes

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards where
they are currently unclear. They include amendments to
HKAS 12 which clarify that all income tax consequences of
dividends are recognised consistently with the transactions
that generated the distributable profits, in profit or loss, other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 - Prepayment
Features with Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial assets with
negative compensation can be measured at amortised cost or
at fair value through other comprehensive income if specified
conditions are met — instead of at fair value through profit
or loss.

Save as disclosed in the foregoing paragraphs about
the impact of HKFRS 16 to the Group's consolidated
financial statements, the directors of the Company have
also performed an assessment on other new standards,
amendments and interpretations, and have concluded on a
preliminary basis that other new standards and amendments
would not have a significant impact on the Group’'s
consolidated financial statements in subsequent years.
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3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the "GEM Listings Rules”).

Basis of measurement
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$”), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company. These consolidated financial
statements are presented in thousands of units of Hong Kong
dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3T

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”).
Inter-company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the dates of
acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as appropriate.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using
the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by
the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at acquisition-
date fair value.

The Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting
gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group
may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure
the non-controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other non-controlling interests are measured at fair value
unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless they
are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.
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4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (ontinuea)

(a)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continueq)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent
adjustments to consideration are recognised against goodwill
only to the extent that they arise from new information
obtained within the measurement period (@ maximum of 12
months from the acquisition date) about the fair value at
the acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a liability
are recognised in profit or loss.
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Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r &

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

(b)

(c)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: power over the
investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the
investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of
these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Goodwiill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
identifiable assets and liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities exceed
the aggregate of the fair value of consideration paid, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree, the excess is recognised in
profit or loss on the acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable
group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assets. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, by comparing its
carrying amount with its recoverable amount (see note 4(g)),
and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired.
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4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (ontinuea)

(c)

(d)

Goodwill (continued)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that financial year.
When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss
is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of
the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount to
each asset in the unit. However, the loss allocated to each
asset will not reduce the individual asset’s carrying amount
to below its fair value less cost of disposal (if measurable) or
its value in use (if determinable), whichever is the higher. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss
and is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its present working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the asset has been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance and overhaul costs, is charged to
profit or loss in the year in which it is incurred. In situations
where it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the subsequent expenditure will flow to the Group
and the cost can be measured reliably, the expenditure is
capitalised as an additional cost of the asset.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r &

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

(d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost net of expected residual value over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The useful lives,
residual value and depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
The useful lives are as follows:
Leasehold improvements 4 years or over the lease
terms, whichever is shorter
Furniture, fixtures and 5 years

equipment

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to lessee. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised
as assets at their fair value or, if lower, the present value
of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding lease
commitment is shown as a liability. Lease payments are
analysed between capital and interest. The interest element is
charged to profit or loss over the period of the lease and is
calculated so that it represents a constant proportion of the
lease liability. The capital element reduces the balance owed
to the lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised as an
integrated part of the total rental expense, over the term of
the lease.

The land and buildings elements of property leases are
considered separately for the purposes of lease classification.
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4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B 75 3R 2= B &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (ontinuea)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

(f)

()

(i)

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at
the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment

losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over
their useful lives as follows. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. The amortisation
expense is recognised in profit or loss and included in
administrative expenses.
Customers relationship 5 years
Impairment

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for
use are tested for impairment annually, irrespective
of whether there is any indication that they may be
impaired. Intangible assets are tested for impairment
by comparing their carrying amounts with their

recoverable amounts (see note 4(g)).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss
is treated as revaluation decrease to the extent of its
revaluation surplus.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3T

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

(9)

(h)

Impairment of other assets (other than
financial assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and investments in subsidiaries to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use) of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised as an expense immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease under that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount to the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised as an income immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset or cash-generating unit
(see note 4(c)), discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
or cash-generating unit.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is calculated using the first-in first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (ontinuea)

(i)(1) Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 April 2018)

()

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without
a significant financing component) is initially measured
at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction
price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place.
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their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest rate method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gains or losses on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECLs on
trade receivables, other receivables and financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The ECLs are measured
on either of the following bases: (1) 12-month ECLs:
these are the ECLs that result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the reporting date;
and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from
all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

(ii)

ReERMER B2REEANE
TEEZMTANSREE -

BIERAA B FIRE SR SR
EMEEMS WABEEMNSR
EREREXNATERFE - A
REHER AT E - W HA ARG
ENERMEERREAERNE
EEHE o MBYA - INEE H IR
mREBERUARBENBSER -
RIERNEMNREHBEENR

TRMEEZRERXK
AR5 B R W EROR - H A B UK
ARRBEKAGENSREE
BREHEEBR(EHEES
BDBEBEEE HHEEHER
AT E P —IBEEGE - (1)12(8 A
MESMEEEE: EANHRER
HER2EAREENBEEROS
HEBNFEREEREER: RQF
RABEMEEEE: LIRS
TEEFFHAMBAIRLAEDY
EHEENFEREERIE o A5
BHEEBRERMERNRRS
MArAEEmEEERBNRE
BHHMA -

srpsEeRaRAE —2-rsss @ 89



N\

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

W

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i)(1) Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 April 2018) (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall
is then discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for
trade receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach
lifetime ECLs.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is

and has calculated ECLs based on

based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

For other receivables, the ECLs are based on the
12-month ECLs. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information

and available without undue cost or effort.

analysis, based on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including forward-
looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 180
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security (if
any is held); or (2) the financial asset is more than 12
months past due.

90 @ E Lighting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

,/"

= A B

B 75 ok MY 5

=

4.

BERETHRw®
(1) EMITBE(BE=E2—N\FEMA—H
HEEANE SR

(ii)

tRMEEZRER X Xmw

EHEEBRAEEEENE X
MG - EEBEDERASHE
RESHNERNAEENRATRE
HEASEBEEHUDWMAR TR
EZHNERGE ZEBHER
RN EERBERMERR -

AEBBEREBMBE RS ER
FIWRBOEA T BRI ANE
BEE YEREBEFRARBE
EEEMEBEHEEERE A&
BERUBBEAEEBEEER
BRBAENBREBREE  WiRE
BABENRBEEAZRERL
BIRTTAFHE -

HEMERFENS  FHEE
BEDEREAERAGEES
8o A {5 SR B R e A
ROAWEIE AN - B A 2 HY TR
EEBERRHEE-

FEETeRmEAEZEERAREN
FHERBERADREIE IR HE
BHEEBER FEEHaEE
HEREANHBZRALEN
aESzaB RAIFEER 1t
BRERREBEASEZBEER LD
MEETRGHZ8LRELE
HESH  AREAEEER -

AEERS HEeMEEARE
B180H - HiE HE M & K& iE
e

AEERREBREERTIER
THREERRE: WERXRATKA
BEEAKEEERERRITE (H
o SRR (B WIFER T
AAREZFEINEEERY &
Q% cREEBANBERI2EA -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i)(1) Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 April 2018) (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non credit-impaired financial assets interest
income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at amortised costs are initially
measured at fair value, net of directly attributable cost
incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and
other payables are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method. The related
interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts or payments through the expected life of
the financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3T

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i)(1) Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 April 2018) (continued)
(vi) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial asset
has been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria
for derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

(i)(2) Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied until 31 March 2018)
The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively, but has
elected not to restate comparative information. Accordingly,
the comparative financial information provided continues to
be accounted for in accordance with the Group’s previous
accounting policy.

0]

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which
the asset was acquired. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value
and all other financial assets are initially measured
at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.
Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
A regular way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale
of financial assets under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the asset within the time frame
established generally by regulation or convention in the
marketplace concerned.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They arise principally through
the provision of goods and services to customers
(trade debtors), and also incorporate other types of
contractual monetary asset. Subsequent to initial

recognition, they are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method,
impairment losses.

less any identified

4.

BERETHRw®
(1) EMITBE(BE=E2—N\FEMA—H
HEEANE SR

(vi)

RIERERR
AEHEESRMEERBMIRRK
REREFNEMNER  KEH
EECEZE AZEEREERE
I mEERFEIRTAKIER
RER KRUIBRACHEE -

CREENEHEANMITRELR
fRRR - RN EME AR LR -

MM EmITRE(ERI=-Z—N\F=
A=+—-BzgsHxX)
AEECEPEMAE BV RELERS
Ot EEBTBIILLWAR - AUt
PRt R B AR BB REBEAEE
TR G ERRAR -

()

TREE
AEERFAKEEERV L E
RESEREELIHR -BRAFE
REBEZIEZEREEVNFRZA
FEFE MAEEGESRERE
MERAFEMBEESREER
BEERGEZXFEAE - &
BEBERHEZeMEBEERR
SHRAEERRRIER - £ —
BEEHEEIHEZLSRBEED
BANBEILE  HERRE
RIS RO BN E R L
HRAXNEE

B R EW B
ZEEERLENERT S HRE
BEBEXFEMNKZIENES
MEE IZ2EBRAEPRMHE
M BR# 2 A (EUGRIR) - B IR
BREEMBIZANEREE -
ROFERRE  SEMEREMEX
VA TR 8 B AR RUE AT B R BRUE
BRI -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (ontinued)

(i)(2) Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied until 31 March 2018) (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence that
financial asset is impaired. Financial asset is impaired
if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that has occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset and that event has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include:

. significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

. granting concession to a debtor because of
debtor’s financial difficulty; or

. it becoming probable that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

For loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of financial asset
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
When any part of financial asset is determined as
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for the relevant financial asset.

An impairment loss is reversed in subsequent periods
when an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount
can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

W

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (ontinued)

(i)(2) Financial instruments (accounting policies
applied until 31 March 2018) (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at amortised costs are initially
measured at fair value, net of directly attributable cost
incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables are measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. The related interest
expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts or payments through the expected life of
the financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial asset
has been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria
for derecognition in accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is

discharged, cancelled or expires.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (ontinuea)

§)

Income tax
Income taxes comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts
used for tax purposes. Except for goodwill and recognised
assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying
amount of the asset or liability is realised or settled and that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are also
recognised directly in equity.

When different tax rates apply to different levels of taxable
income, deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
the average tax rates that are expected to apply to the taxable
income of the periods in which the temporary differences are
expected to reverse.

The determination of the average tax rates requires an
estimation of (1) when the existing temporary differences will
reverse and (2) the amount of future taxable income in those
years. The estimate of future taxable income includes:

- income or loss excluding reversals of temporary
differences; and

- reversals of existing temporary differences.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3T

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

(k)(1) Revenue recognition (accounting policies

applied from 1 April 2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales
taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or services may
be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of
the goods or services is transferred over time if the Group's
performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

o creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised
at a point in time when the customer obtains control of the
goods or services.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amounts receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For contracts where the period between the payment
and the transfer of the promised goods or services is one year
or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued
(k)(1) Revenue recognition (accounting policies
applied from 1 April 2018) (continued)
(i) Sales of lighting and furniture products
and tableware and giftware products
Customers obtain control of the products when the
goods are delivered to and have been accepted.
Revenue is thus recognised upon when the customers
accepted the products. There is generally only one
performance obligation. Invoices are usually payable
within 30 days. In the comparative period, revenue
from sales of goods is recognised on transfer of risks
and rewards of ownership, which was taken as at the
time of delivery and the title is passed to customer.

Some of the Group's contracts with customers from
the sale of product provides customers a right of
return (a right to exchange another product). These
rights of return do not allow the returned goods to
be refund in cash. The right of return gives rise to
variable consideration. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained until
the associated uncertainty is subsequently resolved. The
application of the constraint on variable consideration
increases the amount of revenue that will be deferred.
In the comparative period, revenue for these contracts
was recognised when a reasonable estimate of the
returns could be made, provide that all other revenue
recognition criteria are met. If a reasonable estimate
could not be made, such revenue would be deferred
until the return period lapsed or a reasonable estimate
could be made.

(ii) Other revenue
Interest income is accrued on a time-apportioned
basis by reference to the principal outstanding at the
applicable interest rate.

(k)(2) Revenue recognition (accounting policies
applied until 31 March 2018)
Revenue is recognised to the extent when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (ontinued)

(k)(2) Revenue recognition (accounting policies

U]

(m)

applied until 31 March 2018) (continued)

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the customers, provided that the Group retains
neither managerial involvement to the degree associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold.

Interest income is accrued on a time-apportioned basis by
reference to the principal outstanding at the applicable
interest rate.

Contract liabilities (accounting policies
applied from 1 April 2018)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. A contract liability would also be recognised if the
Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be recognised.

Employee benefits

(i) Defined contribution retirement plan
The group entities incorporated in Hong Kong manage a
defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme
managed by an independent trustee for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF scheme. The
Group makes contributions based on a percentage of
the eligible employees’ salaries funded by the Group and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF scheme.

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when
the services are rendered by the employees.

(ii) Short-term employee benefits
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (ontinued)

(n)

(o)

Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by the group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic environment
in which they operate (the “functional currency”) are recorded
at the rates ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign
currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit
or loss for the period except for differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income, in
which case, the exchange differences are also recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the rates approximating to those ruling
when the transactions took place are used. All assets and
liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the rate ruling
at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve (attributed
to non-controlling interests as appropriate). Exchange
differences recognised in profit or loss of group entities’
separate financial statements on the translation of long-term
monetary items forming part of the Group’s net investment
in the foreign operation concerned are reclassified to other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as foreign
exchange reserve.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, which will probably result
in an outflow of economic benefits that can be reasonably
estimated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r &

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (ontinued)
Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(o)

(p)

Related parties
(€)] A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity
is a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); or

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personal
services to the group or to the group’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(p) Related parties (continued)
Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

(g) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
deposits held at call with banks. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's
cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

(@) Impairment of goodwill
Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the directors to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3T

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(b)

(o)

(d)

Provision for inventories

The Group reviews and identifies at the end of each
financial period, provision for inventories (if any) is based
on recent sales performance, management experience with
characteristic customer purchase behaviour and assessment
of the product’s alignment with current market trend. The
management estimates the net realisable value for inventories
based primarily on the latest market prices and current market
conditions. The assessment of the provision amount required
involves management judgement and estimates. Where the
actual outcome or expectation in future is different from the
original estimate, such differences will impact the carrying
value of inventories and provision charge/written back in the
period in which the estimate has been changed.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables
The Group recognises lifetime ECLs for trade receivables,
using a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date. The amount of the
impairment loss based on ECLs model is measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition. Where
the future cash flows are less than expected, or being revised
downward due to changes in facts and circumstances, a
material impairment loss may arise.

Useful life of non-current assets

The Group determines the depreciation amount of property,
plant and equipment and amortisation of intangible assets
based on the estimated useful life, which are reviewed at
each reporting period end. The principal assumptions for
the Group's estimation of the useful life and residual value
include those related to the mode of operations, government
regulations and scrap value of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets in future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(e) Taxation
Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on
the future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group
carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions, and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into account
all changes in tax legislations. Where the final tax outcome
of these transactions is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such difference will impact the income

tax and deferred tax provisions in the year in which such

determination is made.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences and all unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences and the unused
tax losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets
that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits, which affects the probability
of utilisation and tax rate to be used in the calculations.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting, in accordance with the Group's internal
organisation and reporting structure, provided to the chief operating
decision-maker to make strategic decisions.

The Group has two reportable segments. The segments are managed
separately as each business offers different products and requires
different business strategies. The following summary describes the
operations in each of the Group's reportable segments:

Lighting and furniture —  retail of lighting products and
business household furniture in Hong
Kong

Tableware, giftware and —  retail and wholesale of tableware
other business and giftware and other trading

worldwide

Inter-segment transactions are priced with reference to prices
charged to external parties for similar order. Central revenue and
expenses are not allocated to the operating segments as they are
not included in the measure of the segments’ profit that is used
by the chief operating decision-maker for assessment of segment
performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3T

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(a)

Business segment (a)
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BEZ-NWF=ZA=1T—RHLFE
Tableware,
Lighting and giftware
furniture and other
business business Total
Bk £H BaRk
ES-E ¥ Hih K My
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT FHE T
Revenue from external customers REIBELIA 72,083 6,682 78,765
Reportable segment result EHpEELE 13,667 (8) 13,659
Other segment information: Hibn BMEHR:
Interest income B WA 1 - 1
Depreciation of property, plant and W% - WEREZHED
equipment e 562 23 585
Additions to non-current assets REERBDEE 419 - 419
Impairment loss on property, plant and ~ #1% - = & &
equipment VRN SR - 20 20
ECLs (recognised)/reversed on trade el B 2 FEHE EE B
receivables, net (FER) /B #FE (57) 2 (55)
For the year ended 31 March 2018 BHE_Z - N\F=-A=1+—HLFE
Tableware,
Lighting and giftware
furniture and other
business business Total
Bk BE 2Lk
REEB H b 275 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Revenue from external customers REIBELKA 71,040 10,685 81,725
Reportable segment result EWMDEELE 6,581 (123) 6,458
Other segment information: HttpHEH:
Interest income A B WA 5 1 6
Depreciation of property, plant and M- WMERZHED
equipment e 1,015 37 1,052
Additions to non-current assets REERBDEE 1,133 - 1,133
Loss on disposal of property, plant and R E# % - FE&&E
equipment BB 18 179 - 179
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

(b)

(c)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3

(continued) . = i)
Reconciliation of reportable segment results (b) %i&’ﬁ%ﬁ% BEZ2HER
2019 2018
ZE-AF —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Reportable segment result ERDHESE 13,659 6,458
Other gains or losses — impairment loss Hthm kEE - mE8RERRE
on goodwill (19,817) (17,089)
Other gains or losses — impairment loss EtamkEE - BREERE
on intangible assets &1 (1,877) -
Unallocated corporate expenses (note) RO B R (W) (16,650) (17,028)
Consolidated loss before tax MRELATAR G 18 (24,685) (27,659)

Note: The unallocated corporate expenses mainly consist of rentals
for office premises and warehousing facilities, staff costs
(including salaries to administrative staff and emoluments to

directors) and professional expenses.

MiE: ROECERAIXTZRERAEDNE
kaB®mHEE  BTRA(BETR
ANEWNHFSRERTHFHIREEER -

Segment assets and liabilities (o »HEERAERE
2019 2018
—E-NE —ZET-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Assets BE
Lighting and furniture business B R REXE 25,637 26,362
Tableware, giftware and other business BHE -EBmEkEMESR 3,388 3,897
Segment assets DEEE 29,025 30,259
Intangible assets EBVAE - 3,485
Gooduwill kS - 19,817
Consolidated total assets IRAREE 29,025 53,561
Liabilities =R
Lighting and furniture business B R REER 7,409 6,876
Tableware, giftware and other business ZEA ERREMER 191 327
Segment liabilities DEHEE 7,600 7,203
Unallocated deferred tax liabilities KOMELEHEEE - 575
Consolidated total liabilities mERAaRE 7,600 7,778

ERUEEZERARLE

“E-NEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r&

775 s M i

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEEF =
(d) Geographic information d) HEER
The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue TREHNAEERBINF TP Z WA Z
from external customers: DHT
2019 2018
ZE-AEF AN S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHRT FHET
Hong Kong (place of domicile) B (P ) 73,771 73,384
North America EEM 4,052 2,258
PRC (excluding Hong Kong) FR(TBESE) 384 600
Vietnam faqea] - 5,483
Other countries HER 558 -
78,765 81,725
(e) Information about major customers (e) EBEXEEZEFHEHR
The Group had no customer for whom the revenue raised REBMUBPASBERERREZ
individually accounted for more than 10% of the Group's total E-hFZAZ+HILFEREEE
revenue during the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil). BI0%MEFP(ZE—N\F &) -
7. REVENUE 7. EXE
Disaggregation of revenue L ON Rl
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by EEMREBERARAFEES>HEP & RK
products and timing of revenue recognition are as follows: ADHIAT
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Revenue from contracts with customers ERVBBREERNBISHEERNN
within the scope of HKFRS 15: EFARKA:
Sales of lighting and furniture products S N K A E m 72,083 71,040
Sales of tableware and giftware products HEZARBRE® 6,682 10,685
78,765 81,725
Timing of revenue recognition: R WA R
At a point in time E R 78,765 81,725

AEECERERTBHBMEERE 15T
EREBUEE -REZDE LREHK
TEIAECHRBEE G LN ISR REE -

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using the cumulative effect
method. Under this method, the comparative information is not
restated and was prepared in accordance with HKAS 18.




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3

REVENUE (continued) 7 % = %E(,@)
Disaggregation of revenue (ontinued) WA D5 @
The following table provides information about trade receivables and TREHEBEERZTEUAREATLAONA
contract liabilities from contracts with customers. HBEEM -
At At
31 March 1 April
2019 2018
R S
— —ZT-N\F
=A=+-—H MA—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHETT
Trade receivables (note 19) JE W2 3 18 (B 5E19) 638 659
Contract liabilities (note 21) a#aE 21 1,409 768
The contract liabilities mainly relate to the advance consideration BRNBBEFERNERFPNENRERR - M
received from customers. HK$338,000 of the contract liabilities as RZZT—\FMNA—B&4 81E338,0008LE
of 1 April 2018 has been recognised as revenue for the year ended BRABEE-_ZT-NF=ZA=T—HLFEHD
31 March 2019. N
OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HitWw A - hzmKEE
2019 2018
— el AN S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Bank interest income |ATHE WA 1 6
Impairment loss on goodwiill AmEREEE (19,817) (17,089)
Impairment loss on intangible assets EmEEREREE (1,877) -
Impairment loss on property, plant and WM BEERZXEREBRE
equipment (20) -
ECLs on trade receivables B FEBEZEHEEEIE (55) -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and REYME BERZHBHNERE
equipment - (179)
Others Hit 230 137

(21,538) (17,125)
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9. LOSS BEFORE TAX

9. BRBAIEE

Loss before tax is arrived at after charging: Br AT S B 2 0Bk -

2019 2018
ZE-NF —Z-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Auditor's remuneration % R N & 746 746
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses WRARIZOFERAR 32,055 32,278
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% - BE KB ITE 585 1,052

Amortisation of intangible assets (included in ERAE#EGATHRAX)
administrative expenses) 1,608 1,608

Lease payments under operating leases: KEREET Z2HERNK:
Minimum lease payments BEMBEMNR 14,770 18,754
Contingent rent HAEE 95 177
14,865 18,931
Employee costs (note 10) & 8 A A (Ff 5210) 17,592 16,953
10. EMPLOYEE COSTS 10. B & A&
2019 2018
ZE-AF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FA&T
Employee costs (including directors) comprise: EERA(BREES) BHE:

Salaries and other benefits e kHmER 16,920 16,297

Contributions to defined contribution A 7E 28 4 BOR IR & 8 2 50
retirement plans 672 656
17,592 16,953
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11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE N ESFMEEEESHMAL

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) E=E
The aggregate amount of emoluments paid or payable to BEXHSENTENESNETMEED
each of the directors is as follows: T
Executive directors HITEE
The emoluments paid or payable to executive directors during RAFEEXNIEN FRITEETHNE
the year are as follows: B a0 T

Contributions
to defined
contribution

Salaries and retirement
Fees other benefits plans Total
M E §E
FeR BIRGHEIZ
une Hin @7 EEN wEt
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FTERT FTERT FHT
Year ended 31 March 2019 HE-ZT-h¥F
=A=+-HL
Hui Kwok Keung Raymond FrE 58 - 2,265 18 2,283
Hue Kwok Chiu FrE g - 654 18 672
Hui Kwok Wing EEETES - 504 18 522
- 3,423 54 3,477
Year ended 31 March 2018 BHE-_T-N\#&
=ZA=+—-R1L
Hui Kwok Keung Raymond FrEeR - 1,467 18 1,485
Hue Kwok Chiu FrE8 - 588 18 606
Hui Kwok Wing EEEIES - 435 18 453

- 2,490 54 2,544
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11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE 1. ESHFWREEESFHFMALw
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (ontinued)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (continued) @ EEFMw
Independent non-executive directors BYFHTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during RAFEEXNFBILIERITEENIE
the year are as follows: WM

Contributions

to defined
contribution
Salaries and retirement
Fees  other benefits plans Total
Fek RBTEH/TEBRK
re Ht @A HEZHR o
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FTERT FTERT FTERT
Year ended 31 March 2019 #HZ=-Z-hE=A=1+-HL
Chung Wai Man EEX 180 - - 180
Leung Wai Chuen 2REZR 180 - - 180
Yeung Mo Sheung Ann BER 180 - - 180
540 - - 540
Year ended 31 March 2018 Hz-_T-)\FZA=t+-AL
Chung Wai Man BREX 180 - - 180
Leung Wai Chuen 2REZR 180 - - 180
Yeung Mo Sheung Ann BER 180 - - 180
540 - - 540
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEBESHFMAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the REEWRERSHFMALTH  HEPm
Group, two (2018: two) were directors of the Company whose BEARRES(ZE—N\F -WME)
emoluments are included in the disclosures in note 11(a) PEFWNE A EN@QFEHEE - %
above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2018: three) T=ZBALT(CE—N\F:=ZR)WFHW
individuals are as follows: ™
2019 2018
—E-AF —ZE—-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FHT
Salaries and other benefits e RHEMEF 1,874 1,671
Contributions to defined contribution M) E B8t FUR K ET 81 2 5K
retirement plans 54 54

1,928 1,725
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11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE 1. ESHFHREEESFHFMALw
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (continued) (b) EBZEBRSFMALw
Emoluments paid to each of above individuals for each of the FHNTUTHEN LA LHENT

year fell within the following band:

2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
No. of No. of
individuals individuals

ATHHE ATHEE

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % #711,000,000 3 3
During the year ended 31 March 2019, no emoluments were HE-_Z-NAF-A=Z+—ALEE " XK
paid by the Group to the directors of the Company or the EEWSEMARRIZEESA AL &S
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon FMALTZAEB  ERMALREE
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2018: RMAREBRGZ RS MBHEC
Nil). None of the directors nor the five highest paid individuals T-N\F 8 RERNEEFLREEED
have waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the BN 3 B 5 [R) B R B A AR = A
year (2018: Nil). MR ZE—NF &)
12. INCOME TAX CREDIT 12. REHREBER
The amount of income tax credit in the consolidated statement of RiGEEakEM2ERERPFHOMEHE
profit or loss and other comprehensive income represents: RER
2019 2018
ZE-AF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BNERRI I — BB NGB
- charge for the year —AFEELH (57) (43)
— over-provision in respect of prior year —BAFEBERE - 1
(57) (42)
Deferred tax (note 22) iR FE B 8 (P 5 22)
- credit for the year —ARFEEEN 490 288
- effect of change in tax rates - BEREBHNTE 5 -
495 288
Income tax credit FEHEE 438 246

srpsEeRaRAd —2-hses @ 111




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r &

12.

INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued)

In March 2018, the Hong Kong Government introduced a two-
tiered profits tax rates regime by enacting the Inland Revenue
(Amendment) (No. 3) Ordinance 2018 (the
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of

“Ordinance”). Under

assessable profits of qualifying corporations is taxed at 8.25% and
the remaining assessable profits at 16.5%. The Ordinance is effective
from the year of assessment 2018/19.

Accordingly, the provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year
ended 31 March 2019 is calculated in accordance with the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime (2018: a single tax rate of 16.5% was

g ey s
12. FRBHIE S

& B R 7201843 A @ B (20184F B 1% (15
D (E3R) BTz & 611 - & e 5 15 5 i
EH o MEBEFMEBHMAH  AERLCENY
2,000,0007% T JE& &F 7 FI B &9 1 & 728.25% -
i & T #) FE 5T B A R B16.5% - iZ &6 A
2018 19 i FF [E#E A 20 -

Hit B#E-_T—NhFZA=Z+—HLFED
BEHEF B mﬁéﬁmﬁ%ﬁﬂ STHMEHTE (=
T—)\F: ERAE—FE16.5%) °

applied).
The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss REEMENERATRGEERIAMEE
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other WaRRMAROMRRATEBEERENT
comprehensive income as follows:
2019 2018
—ZE-hF — N\
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FET
Loss before tax W 15 A &5 18 24,685 27,659
Tax credit calculated at the applicable domestic &N E AR (—ZT—/\4F : 16.5%)
tax rate (2018: 16.5%) SREZABNEARHE 4,105 4,564
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AAMBRAZ 2R BT E
for tax purposes (3,272) (2,820)
Tax effect of other deferred tax not recognised AEREMBELERE 2R FEFE 15 138
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERB KRR UM%E” 2 (416) (1,638)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose /BRI W A 2 T 1§ 2 1 1
Effect on opening deferred tax balances %R%Eibﬁi%ﬂﬁkm EHHEE
resulting for change in tax rates 5 -
Over-provision in respect of prior year BAFEBERE - 1
Income tax credit FEHER 438 246
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13. LOSS PER SHARE 13. 8REE
The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share attributable to RARIEBABLEZERERAREEERHE
the owners of the Company is based on the following data: R TEESE:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Loss: BE:
Loss for the year for the purpose of calculating &t & & i & A K& #58
basic and diluted loss per share BEZFRNEE (24,247) (27,413)
2019 2018
—E-hEFE ZT-N\F
‘000 ‘000
TR T &
Number of shares: RBEAE:
Weighted average number of shares for the MAETRARRE S
purpose of calculating basic and diluted loss B8 2 I FE R0 &R
per share 451,036 451,036

Notes: Bt 5

(i) Basic loss per share was calculated by dividing the loss attributable (i) BREXEERBEHEBARIGERE  BRUF
to the owners of the Company by the weighted average number of NEBTERROMETHEBHE -
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

(ii) For the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, diluted loss per share (i) BE_Z-NFR-ZZF-N\F=ZA=+—B1t
was the same as basic loss per share as there were no dilutive potential FE BAREE_ZE-NFRZZE-NF=A
ordinary shares outstanding during the years ended 31 March 2019 S+-BLEFETEETEET @R Bt
and 2018. ERBBEHEESERAENBERRF -

14. DIVIDENDS 14. R E

The Board does not recommend payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2019, nor has any dividend been proposed

since the end of reporting period (2018: Nil).

BEFEe T TEERBE_E-NF=A=+—H
LTERERMEMKRE  MERSHBMEZRN
R ERZERNEMRE(ZTE-NE: HE) -

srpzEeRERAT —2-hrsss @ 13



15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3T

15. %  BEKRKE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
improvements equipment Total
RE -
HEMEHE REREE wEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Cost %N
As at 1 April 2017 RZE—+tFWA—A 6,988 2,263 9,251
Additions at cost B il 1,021 12 1,133
Disposal BE (1,960) (269) (2,229)
As at 31 March 2018 RZE-NF=ZA=+—8H 6,049 2,106 8,155
Additions at cost B AN 35 404 15 419
Disposal BE (1,500) (239) (1,739)
As at 31 March 2019 RZB-NF=ZRA=1+—H 4,953 1,882 6,835
Accumulated depreciation and RAFMERAERE
impairment losses
As at 1 April 2017 RZE—+FWMA—H 6,256 1,642 7,898
Depreciation nE 766 286 1,052
Written back on disposal BB REL (1,808) (242) (2,050)
As at 31 March 2018 RZZE—-N\F=A=+—H 5,214 1,686 6,900
Depreciation nE 205 380 585
Impairment loss REEE 20 - 20
Written back on disposal EERED (1,500) (239) (1,739)
As at 31 March 2019 RZZE-NF=R=1+—H 3,939 1,827 5,766
Net book value REFE
As at 31 March 2018 RZZ-N\F=ZA=+—H 835 420 1,255
As at 31 March 2019 RZZE-NF=R=1+—H 1,014 55 1,069
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B &EE
Customers
relationship
EFB#%
HK$'000
FABT
Cost 24
As at 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018 and RZE—+tFWA—AH -
31 March 2019 —E-N\F=ZA=+—H8k
—E-hF=RA=+—H 8,041
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses EtBERREEIE
As at 1 April 2017 R-ZZFE—tFMA—H 2,948
Amortisation 8 1,608
As at 31 March 2018 RZFE-—/N\F=ZA=+—H 4,556
Amortisation R 1,608
Impairment loss B & 1B 1,877
As at 31 March 2019 RZE-NF=ZA=+—H 8,041
Net book value REFE
As at 31 March 2018 RZE—-N\F=ZA=+—H 3,485
As at 31 March 2019 R-ZFE—NAF=ZA=+—H -

srpsEeRERAT —2-hr5ss @ 115
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B 75 ok MY 5

17. GOODWILL GRS
HK$'000
FET
Cost 29N
As at 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018 and RZE—+FWMA—RH ZT—N\F
31 March 2019 =A=+—RAR=-ZE—AF=A=+—H 36,906
Accumulated impairment losses ZREEE
As at 1 April 2017 R-ZZFE—+tFMA—AH -
Impairment loss BEEE 17,089
As at 31 March 2018 W-ZE—-N\FE=ZfF=+—H 17,089
Impairment loss VERENSEE! 19,817
As at 31 March 2019 RZE—NFE=A=+—H 36,906
Net book value REFE
As at 31 March 2018 RZZFE—N\F=A=+—H 19,817

As at 31 March 2019

R=Z-nF=F=+—H -

Impairment of goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating unit (“CGU") of sales of tableware and giftware products.
The recoverable amounts of the CGU have been determined from
value in use calculations based on cash flow projections from
formally approved budgets covering a five-year period and adopted
pre-tax discount rate of 16.6% (2018: 21.6%). Cash flow beyond
the five-year period is extrapolated using an estimated weighted
average growth rate of 3% (2018: 3%), which does not exceed the
long-term growth rate for the industry. The key assumptions for the
value in use calculations are budgeted gross margin of 20% to 23%
(2018: 26% to 28%) and growth rate of 3% to 5% (2018: 3% to
32%), which are determined based on the unit's past performance
and management’s expectations regarding market development.
The discount rate is determined based on the Hong Kong risk-free
interest rate adjusted by the specific risk associated with the CGU.

Goodwill impairment of approximately HK$19,817,000 (2018:
17,089,000) was made due to the recently intensively competitive
environment within which the CGU operates, as a result of macro
business environment uncertainty. Management have therefore
adjusted their expected profit forecast for the CGU to allow for the
impact of material competitiveness in the market.
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18. INVENTORIES 18. F 8
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZT-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FHET
Merchandise 7 o 10,382 12,433
19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. BUFRIE K Eftt B U R IR
2019 2018
ZE-NF —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FAT
Trade receivables JE W 3% 38 638 770
Deposits and other receivables e R HEMERKIE 5,715 6,347
Prepayments T R IE 3,856 3,805
Total #Et 10,209 10,922
Less: non-current — rental deposits B R -HERS (2,806) (3,769)
7,403 7,153
The average credit period on sales of goods is 30 days from invoice HEEWHTAGEPRRERZALIZOR - 1
date. At the end of reporting period, ageing analysis of the trade WMEMER - BRKREBHBRREEBIER) &%
receivables (net of impairment losses), based on invoice dates, are ZEHHMERERSTHOT
as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEF AN
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Within 30 days 30K A 402 323
31 to 90 days 31290k 49 173
91 to 180 days 91E180K 164 144
Over 180 days B B180K 23 130
638 770
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19.

20.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continuea) 19. ERRERHEMERMREw
The Group and the Company assessed impairment loss based on AN B AR 1 MY A0 G) RAG)Q)G) Fr & 51 8
the accounting policy stated in note 4(i)(1)(ii). The Group did not FETECR AT AR E B K o A S @I & 5K
hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancement over the RIEEBEMEAREASEKR R A E 5
trade receivables. MAEHE o
Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising EHMEECEERREREEREFRNEER
from trade receivables are set out in note 28(b). B ) i — 25 5E 15 H A M 2R 28(b) ©
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20. BT IE R HAth B S FRIE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Trade payables JE T 518 3,694 4,029
Receipts in advance T8 U K 18 - 768
Accruals and other payables J& 5t R IE Ko Ho At JE A5 RRIE 2,361 2,272
6,055 7,069

Trade payables are non-interest bearing. The Group is normally
granted credit terms ranging from 30 to 180 days. At the end of
reporting period, ageing analysis of the trade payables, based on
invoice dates, are as follows:

ENFRER AR - NEE—KREN F302
1BORZIEEH - R EHEKR - BHRIER
HEAHHREDTIT

2019 2018

—E-hE —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER FHET

Within 30 days EFNA 1,803 1,693
31 to 60 days 31260k 525 334
61 to 90 days 61290k 624 467
Over 90 days B iBI0X 742 1,535

3,694 4,029
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CONTRACT LIABILITIES 21. &N EE
The Group has recognised the following revenue-related contract REBECHABUTRAEBENAE:
liabilities:
2019 2018
—E-NF —ET-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA& T
Contract liabilities aHaE 1,409 -
Movements in contract liabilities EHNEBENEH
2019
ZE-AF
HK$'000
THT
Balance at 1 April 2018 RZZE—\FWOA—H#&#% -
Impact of adoption of HKFRS 15 JEREBVBEBMELRBISROTE 768
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of recognising Iilﬁﬁﬁ VEFFASHABRKRA
revenue during the year that was included in the contract BHAENEERLD (M7
liabilities at the beginning of the year (note 7) (338)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of advanced AleaxrPromEdREmME RN
consideration received from customers ARAFEEM 979
Balance at 31 March 2019 RZE—NF=ZA=+—H#&#H% 1,409
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using the cumulative effect REBFERRFAXEENRERAEEN B R
method and adjusted the opening balance at 1 April 2018. Upon HERFESR Y AR T - N\FMOA—HHH
the adoption of HKFRS 15, amounts previously included as “Receipts M - RIRMNBE BT B R EERF155%% -
in advance” grouped under “Trade and other payables” (note 20) ZET BAETEFE N R & B fh & B I N [58
were reclassified to “Contract liabilities”. WHBEIME20MeBEEEFTH»EAIANEA
&l e
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22. DEFERRED TAX 22. IEE R 18
The movements in the deferred tax assets/(liabilities) during the year RERBEE (AB)RAFEEZEFHNOT

are as follows:

Fair value
Accelerated  Decelerated  adjustment

tax tax on intangible
depreciation  depreciation assets Total
mE & BEWEE
REHFE BREHE LATYERAE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT FBT AT
As at 1 April 2017 R-E—tFWNA—H (15) 328 (840) (527)
Credit to profit or loss (note 12) @A 12) 5 18 265 288
As at 31 March 2018 R-ZFE-N\F=ZA=1+-H (10) 346 (575) (239)
Effect of change in tax rates (note) MEEBHMTE 5 - - 5
Credit to profit or loss (note 12) REZEFAF12) 3 (88) 575 490
As at 31 March 2019 RZZ-N¥=A=+—H 2) 258 - 256
Note: The opening deferred tax balance is adjusted to reflect the effects B sk : FYNRLER AR 8B A R AR ARSI B =R -
of the two-tiered tax rates. Since current tax for the year is subject HARMAGREERANAFEANBRIE - F
to the two-tiered tax rates, the opening (as opposed to the closing) # (i 3F F R ) 3R FE &% 4% 68 B 38 B DA R I A 4%
deferred tax balance is adjusted to reflect the two-tiered tax rates so FIRE QU AFEERHUEEE2EERE
that temporary differences originating and reversing during the year Eree R A ANEARITHIE AR AR — B K
will be subject to the same tax rates as other items subject to current
tax.
Deferred tax asset has not been recognised for the following: AT R ERTE & B M R R
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ET-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Deductible temporary differences AENEREZR 1,298 1,886
Unused tax losses RE)AT K E 18 42,636 40,150
43,934 42,036
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the A SR 88 TEDRI 5K 2% I ROR - i I A gk AT 340
deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses due MERMERARADAFEBRBERELH
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The deductible EHEE NENLTREZERRGHEMNIEE
temporary differences and unused tax losses can be carried forward BAIABREEHE -

indefinitely.




23.

24,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3

SHARE CAPITAL 23. R
Nominal
Number of value of
ordinary ordinary
shares shares
ZBEREE ZEREE
HK$'000
FHL
Authorised: EE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each as at BREECOATLZEARR-_ZT—tF
1 April 2017, 31 March 2018 and MA—H -ZE—N\F=ZA=+—HK
31 March 2019 —E-hAF=ZA=1+—8H 1,000,000,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHRE:
As at 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018 and R-ZZBE—+FMA—HB ZZE-N\F
31 March 2019 —A=+—HAFK-ZE—NAFE=ZA=+—H 451,035,713 4,510

All new shares issued rank pari passu in all respects with the then

existing shares.

RESERVES
Group

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Share premium

The share premium account of the Group represents the premium

arising from the issuance of shares at premium.

PrameslEBl2RERNEERSFE -

24. f#1E

rEME
ARERENEEEDORBERR GRS
SBHED -

B A7 i
AN 2 R0 (R R UR E R ATIRDAT
1B a0 ME -

Company b /N
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
BR 17 35 18 RitE 8 “E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
As at 1 April 2017 RZE—tFMA—H 67,066 (18,204) 48,862
Loss and total comprehensive income — FREE & 2 U= 25
for the year - (8,024) (8,024)
As at 31 March 2018 RZZE—-—\F=ZA=+—H 67,066 (26,228) 40,838
Loss and total comprehensive income — FREE & 2 U 425
for the year - M M
As at 31 March 2019 RZE—NF=A=1+—H 67,066 (26,229) 40,837
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25.

26.

LEASE 25. HE
Operating leases — As lessee ReHE-FEREBAA
The Group leases various offices, retail shops and warehouses AEERBETAIBERERRBEASE THA
under non-cancellable lease agreements. The lease agreements are = TEEHLEE ZEHEBEAH—=
between one and three years, and majority of lease arrangements =F AN EETHAIRHEEBEREIZETE
are renewable at the end of the lease period with either pre-set MR EEFHBEOTIBLETFUEE -
increment rate or market rate to be agreed with landlords.
The operating leases of certain retail shops also call for additional ETZTEERENLEEHENERBEIINEE B
rentals, which will be based on a certain percentage of revenue AHESKRBREBESHERRTHOBRRRGEE
of the operation being undertaken therein pursuant to the terms B REFEFR SN —TEBDLETHE - BRZ
and conditions as stipulated in the respective rental agreements. ETEEFORRNGZEEIRNFREEET -
As the future revenue of these retail shops could not be accurately WA EEH YT ABESIAES -
determined as at the end of the year, the relevant contingent rentals
have not been included.
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non- BETABHECEHNERRAET €58
cancellable operating leases in respect of offices, retail shops and REEINHARSEHESHBLENT:
warehouses are as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEFE —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHET
Not later than one year —F R 12,083 13,023
Later than one year and not later than five years —%F % Kk AF R 7,235 9,466
19,318 22,489
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 26. BERARE
The Group had the following material transactions with its related RAEERBE-_ZT-NFER-_T-\F=ZA=+
parties during the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018. —HIEFERNSHEHEHFETTIERNRS
Compensation of key management personnel FTEEBEABZHM
Key management includes directors and senior managements. The FTEEREOREERANABERAE - 23N
compensation paid or payable to key management personnel for FENFTEZEBAENEERBHFMOT
employee services is shown below:
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT-N\#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Salaries and other benefits e &k H iz F 6,100 4,403
Contributions to defined M) E B8 FUR K ET 81 2 5K
contribution retirement plans 126 126

6,226 4,529
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27. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 27. =8\

AElrEMEERETRME

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY ﬁ HY 8t 2
Below summary of financial assets and financial liabilities by ZHEFIE D EREERSREBENMENUT :
category:
2019 2018
ZE-NF —ZT-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Financial assets tREE
Financial assets at amortised cost: REHKAGFENEHEE:
Trade and other receivables JE W 3k T R E M pE W SR 1B 6,353 7117
Cash and bank balances | RAIRTTH R 7,107 4,936
13,460 12,053
Financial liabilities cHAE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: REHKNAAENEREE:
Trade and other payables FE F R IE R H At FE S 3R I8 6,055 6,301
28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 28. I EKE?
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: K%IE’J%%%E%EM%@K@1@%%@@
including foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest % EERR RBDESER LKA EEREE - A
rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management procedures focus SENEZERBREERFHEHUAEANS
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimise BTG USRkBEREY EEEHBERER
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance. FIERMNETEETE -
(a) Foreign exchange risk (a) ERR

The Group undertakes certain purchase transactions
denominated in foreign currencies, hence exposure to
exchange rate fluctuations arises. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management of the Group monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arises.

The Group is mainly exposed to foreign exchange fluctuation
of the Euro (“EUR"), United States dollar (“USD"”) and
Renminbi (“RMB”) against HK$.

Since HK$ is pegged to USD, management considers that
there is no significant foreign currency risk between these
two currencies to the Group.

REBETETUIINEHENRER
% AmARERREFELENRR -
7R E2 B TR B A0 B S B R B - AT
FEHEREESERIIERRRERE
ERZELHPERINERR

AEBEETE2AZEH TR T £
(ETXDRARBETAREDRLETH
SV R B R B o

MRETHETHA ERERRZ
MEEEIYEAREBSRERNIE
’_LAA
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a)

(b)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

The Group’s trade payables denominated in EUR and RMB
are in insignificant amount at the end of each of reporting
periods. The directors are of the opinion that the volatility of
the Group's results against change in exchange rate of EUR
and RMB would not be significant. Accordingly, no sensitivity
analysis is performed.

Credit risk

Credit risk includes risks resulting from counterparty default
and risks of concentration. The Group's credit risk is primarily
attributable to its trade and other receivables. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit
risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Most of the retail sales are made in cash or by credit cards.
In respect of sales on credit, the Group trades on credit only
with corporate customers who have an established trading
history with the Group. The Group has policies in place for
the control and monitoring of relevant credit risks. These
credit evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the customer as
well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates.

As at 31 March 2019, the trade receivables from the five
largest debtors represented 57% (2018: 42%) of the total
trade receivables respectively, while the largest debtor
represented 17% (2018: 11%) of the total trade receivables
respectively.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished between
the Group's different customer bases.
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28. Bii5 R b2 B 1B

(a)

(b)

I BE & B s
REREPER AEB B2 UL
MARBTENENRE EERE
AEENFEERBRMITRARKELREZS)
MmHIREE B TR - Eitt - I EEITH
EREDHT ©

EERE
EERBREEEFIEOLARSE M
SIBWAR AEHEZEERRBREIZR
BEEBKESRR N EMERE - &
BEXEEERR IRHEERAEH
PrEEZZEEERR -

MR AREBOOHEEARCRIAERRE
Me-pEEHEMS AEEERERE
BEERPRIELNRRARSETHE
ERG AEEEEHREREHER
REOBE - hEEEFHETREP
BEBNIPRAZESL RRENFHZ
BT UREBIEFPZAREHNLE
BEMEZ KBRS

R—ZB—HE=ZA=+—HB > AE&®&K
BB A 2 FEW SR IE AL FE U 5K TB B 5857 %
ZEN\F:42%) MEAKEBAZE
Wk B AME FE M SR IE 485817 % (ZZ—N
F11%)

FEERERFRAEDREEBENS
BORBBEERTES ) 2B EX
HEERE AN AEENBEEED
BERITEXRATAZTL DA EERE
AEEHBEZR BUBE-—TEDA
B AR R PR e B RO A S R B
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

28. B iS5 E be B 1B )

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) 1% E E‘, Fﬁ(%%)
The following table provides information about the Group’s TEREHBERAEER-_ZE—-—NF=HA
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at =t+—ARERREMEENEERR
31 March 2019: RIEBMEEBEENER:
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
EHBEL R MEREE BiEBE
HK$'000 HK$'000
(%) FAET FHET
Not past due 5K %8 BR 1 406 (4)
1-180 days past due @ #11-180K 1 218 (2)
181-365 days past due 1 #1181-365K 50 40 (20)
More than 12 months past due w B EE 1218 A 100 140 (140)
804 (166)
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience FEHEBLEENRBASFONEREE
over the past 5 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect KBRAREE ZELEDNEAE UK
differences between economic conditions during the period MAEKERELEIFEHMOLERRT - B
over which the historic data has been collected, current AR A R AN E B S ERRIBENTERF
conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions over EHEEGCER RN B EZNER -
the expected lives of the receivables.
Prior to 1 April 2018, an impairment loss was recognised EZZ—)\FMA—BZA " BEEXKX
only when there was objective evidence of impairment (see ERHETEREZIENF TERER
note 4()2(ii)). As at 31 March 2018, no trade receivables M sE40)2G) c R=ZTE—NF=ZA=+
was determined to be impaired. The ageing analysis of trade —B - EEKRFIBEEELRRE K
receivables that were not considered to be impaired was as AR B IR RUE /) B U CBR SRR BR R AT
follows: N
As at
31 March
2018
R=ZZT—N\F
—A=+—H
HK$'000
FH&IT
Not past due 7K 180 HA 323
1-90 days past due i1 #31-90 K 269
91-180 days past due 8 H191-180K 52
More than 180 days past due 0 B R 180K 126
770

srpsEeRERAT —2-r5ss @ 125
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom there was
no recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to a number of independent customers that had a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believed that no impairment allowance was
necessary in respect of these balances as there had been no
significant change in credit quality and the balances were still
considered fully recoverable.

Movements in the loss allowance account in respect of trade
receivables during the year are as follows:

B 75 ok MY 5

BHEBREEw

(b

'ngﬂlzﬁ (4)
BIE 4 160 A 4 Rl (B A B Wi SR IE T e T B
BREENCTHENSHEERER -

38 5318 R Ol (B A 8 LA 30 TR B 7 5k (B
BERUHEBLBNAREBIEFLERH -
REBEBELR %‘EE*HE CTHRER
BRUVBEEAEHEAAERDKAR/T
28U E - BB AR % F S RIEHRE
B

ERNEMRKRE BEBBED
m

2019 2018
—E-nE — N\
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHE T
Balance at beginning of the year under BRIBEEB G EAFE39%

HKAS 39 KRR - -

Impact of initial application of HKFRS 9 K PE R B % R S LA
(note 2 (a)A(ii)(@a)) Fo5 2 % 2 (3 2)A) @) 1M1 -
Adjusted balance at beginning of the year KRR ZFEEE 11 -
ECLs recognised during the year FABR2EBREEBE 55 -
Balance at end of the year FRE 166 -

The credit risks on rental deposits are considered to be low
as they can be recovered by offsetting against the rental
payments.

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited because
the counterparties are reputable and creditworthy banks.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be able
to meet its obligations associated with its financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or other financial assets.
The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement
of trade and other payables, and also in respect of its cash
flow management. The cash management of all operating
entities is centralised, including the raising of funds to cover
expected cash demands. The Group’s objective is to maintain
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and longer term.
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28.

29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued

(C) quuldlty risk (continued)
As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, the Group’s financial
liabilities will be due for settlement either on demand or
within one year. The liquidity policies have been consistently
applied by the Group and are considered effective in
managing the liquidity risks.

(d) Interest rate risk
As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets and
liabilities, the Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest rate.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's capital management objectives are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital
and to support the Group’s stability and growth.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure, taking into consideration the future capital requirements
of the Group, to ensure optimal shareholder returns.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a debt-to-
equity ratio. For this purpose, net debt includes borrowing less cash
and bank balances while equity comprises share capital and reserves.

The debt-to-equity ratio at the end of reporting period was as
follows:

28.

29.

RAMBHRRNE

B 75 2L B % 32
(C) /)lb@)ﬁﬁﬂ R ()
RIEB-NFR-_E-NF=ZA=+—
CAREZzeREBERIHER  H
Eﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬁé*iﬁﬂ%ﬁo$%@ﬁ§
WMERARHEZBER  ZZBEBRA
AERERRDESRER °

(d) F ==k
A A AR A A - R
MIEARSEREREABHTENS
FERBHYE -

EXRREBE?

$¢@Z§$AEE%EﬁF$EEM%%é
B bR SRR B R IR E A i) 2 AR BB 0
HRE BB RERAGBR D ESRA
MEXHE EEEZBTHRERZESN -

AEEEBEERRIRERREALRE R
HEBEAEE L ARESTE  UHRRHER
ERRMEE -

AEEAERAELRIFRERERNEE -
Ut s /%rﬁfz@%%mﬁfﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁ*
# o Migm e mEARHE

NERSHHGEEANABRES L TMT

2019 2018

—E-hE —\&F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FH& T

Net Debt FEIE (7,107) (4,936)
Equity T &= 21,425 45,783
Debt to equity ratio BEERLE (33%) (11%)
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30. SUMMARISED FINANCIAL POSITION OF 30. "N E B AR R B E

THE COMPANY

2019 2018
—2-nE  ZEN\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
[{bg=S FHET FET
Non-current assets EREEE
Investments in subsidiaries REBARINIRE 44,717 44,717
Total non-current assets IERBEELE 44,717 44,717
Current assets REBEE
Other receivable H fth & Y 3R 1E 41 41
Cash and bank balances B RIRITTHERS 589 590
Total current assets RBEEEE 630 631
Total assets BEBE 45,347 45,348
NET ASSETS EEFHE 45,347 45,348
Equity =
Share capital % < 23 4,510 4,510
Reserves 15 24 40,837 40,838
TOTAL EQUITY EHEE 45,347 45,348

On behalf of the Board
REESE

Hui Kwok Keung Raymond (&F Bl 3#)
Director Z %

Hue Kwok Chiu (FFE £/)

Director & &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAMBHRRNE

PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 31. B RS
Particulars of the Group's subsidiaries as at 31 March 2019 are as AEEBR-_ZE—NF=ZA=Z+—"HZWBEAR
follows: FEAT
Issued and Attributable
fully paid equity interest
Place and date of share capital held by the Group Principal activities
Name incorporation/establishment BRI AEEBEN and place of operation
£ MBIt E KA S BRERA e £ TTEBREERE
Top Triumph Global Limited BVI, 20 November 2013 Us$1 100% direct Investment holding
EBRAHE (EH 100% & # REER
—E-=F+-AZtH
Central United Global Limited BVI, 18 November 2010 Us$100 100% indirect Investment holding
EBRAHE 100% 7T 100% & REER
—Z-ZE+-ATNH
Elegant Chain Development BVI, 8 August 2008 Us$140 100% indirect Investment holding
Limited RERLES 140% 7T 100% &) #% REZR
“ZZNENANA
Top Investor Global Limited BVI, 11 November 2014 Us$1 100% indirect Investment holding
EBRUHE (EH 100% & REZER
—Z-ME+-A+—-AH
Central Sky Holdings Limited Hong Kong, 24 October 2003 HK$10 100% indirect Retail of lighting products in
FRERBRAF E# —BEZ=F+A-1WA 1078 7T 100% & # Hong Kong
REBTERHER
E Lighting Group Limited Hong Kong, 4 January 2011 HK$10,000 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
5F —T-——F—-AmWA 10,0007 7T 100% il # and household furniture in
Hong Kong
RERZERHEMRRE
Element Lighting Design Limited ~ Hong Kong, 11 May 2005 HK$10 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
REARFAERLA 5% “ZZRF¥AAT-A 1047t 100% 5 and household furniture in
Hong Kong
RERZERHEMRRE
Good Harvest Surplus Limited Hong Kong, 20 May 2011 HK$1 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
ELRERATA FF —ET-——FHAA-1H BT 100% il # and household furniture in
Hong Kong
RERZERHEMRRE
RS Holdings Limited Hong Kong, 23 February 2009 HK$10,000 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
B# —TTNF-R=+=H 10,0007 T 100% il # and household furniture in

Hong Kong
REBZERBHERNTA
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31.

PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES (ontinuea)  31.

Place and date of

Issued and
fully paid
share capital

B A BB w

Attributable
equity interest

held by the Group Principal activities

Name incorporation/establishment BRTR AEBEFRBEN and place of operation
8 FEM AR SRR 3 i B R A BRERA 45 R 1 & TEXBREFME
228 Inc Limited Hong Kong, 6 November 2013 HK$10,000 100% indirect Retail of lighting products in
BH —F-=F+-AAXA 10,0007% 7T 100% fé 4 Hong Kong
REBTERHER
Culture Art Limited Hong Kong, 6 October 2014 HK$1 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
XEBRARA BF —T-NETARA BT 100% i # and household furniture in
Hong Kong
RERZERHEMRRE
Major Will Limited Hong Kong, 6 October 2014 HK$1 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
BF —T-NETARA BT 100% i # and household furniture in
Hong Kong
RERZERHEMRRE
ELG Operations Limited Hong Kong, 14 October 2014 HK$1 100% indirect Sourcing of lighting products
ERAEELERRAA EF “Z-NETATHEA T 100% i # and household furniture
REBHERRFA
ELG Management Limited Hong Kong, 14 October 2014 HK$1 100% indirect Provision of management
ERAEEERARAA EF “Z-NETATHEA T 100% i # services
REEERE
Urban Lifestyle Limited Hong Kong, 26 November 2014 HK$1 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
BF ZE-WET—AZtRB  1Ex 100% i # and household furniture in
Hong Kong
REBRZERHEMRRE
Lighting Connected Limited Hong Kong, 26 November 2014 HK$1 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
(formerly known as “Urban B ZE-WET—A=1T/H BT 100% i # and household furniture in
Urban Limited”) Hong Kong
(778 A [Urban Urban RERTERMHEMRRA
Limited])
Real Luck Limited Hong Kong, 1 December 2014 HK$1 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
EF “Z-NET=A-H BT 100% i # and household furniture in

Hong Kong
REBZERBHERRTA
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32.

PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES (ontinuea)  31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 Bf 75 3R 2= M 3

Fft B A B 5 18 a0

Issued and Attributable
fully paid equity interest
Place and date of share capital held by the Group Principal activities
Name incorporation/establishment BETR AEEREEN and place of operation
£ EMAY/ Rt RAS BRRA e £ TEXBREXLY
Trendmall Group Limited Hong Kong, 2 December 2014 HK$1 100% indirect Wholesale of tableware
(formerly known as A% —T-NmF+-AZH 177 100% 4 and its related products
"Trendmall Tableware & worldwide
Giftware Limited”) REREMTSHEER
(B178 A Trendmall Tableware RIEEE®
& Giftware Limited])
Trendmall Gallery Limited Hong Kong, 15 December 2014 HK$1 100% indirect Retail of tableware and
W& EEARAT A% —T-NmFE+-A+EA 177 100% & giftware in Hong Kong
REBZEEARER
Trendmall International Hong Kong, 15 December 2014 HK$1 100% indirect Investment holding
Limited (formerly known as A% —T-NmFE+-A+EA 157 100% & & REER

“Trendmall Design Limited")
(#17& & [Trendmall Design
Limited )

Note:

the year.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 19 June 2019.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of

32.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B S

Year ended 31 March
HE=A=t+-ALEE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-nF ZE-N\F ZE—«tF TR F —T—1F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAT FAT FAT FETT
OPERATING RESULTS ReExE
Revenue ] 78,765 81,725 83,237 106,488 80,416
Cost of sales $HE R A (36,399) (41,647) (38,773) (57,089) (35,370)
Gross profit EF 42,366 40,078 44,464 49,399 45,046
Other income and gain H g A &I = (21,538) (17,125) (1,516) 19,330 107
Selling and distribution HERDHAX
expenses (28,863) (33,584) (36,848) (41,332) (36,824)
Administrative and other THRREMES
expenses (16,650) (17,028) (18,546) (21,576) (20,570)
Finance costs 81 7% Ak AR - - 4) (10) -
Profit/(Loss) before tax BRBAERN(EE) (24,685) (27,659) (12,450) 5,811 (12,241
Income tax credit/(expense)  FiSEE 2, (F%) 438 246 9 (154) (456)
Profit/(Loss) and total AABEEAEN
comprehensive income FREAN(FB)
for the year attributable kR2EKRBEHE
to the owners of the
Company (24,247) (27,413) (12,441) 5,657 (12,697)
As at 31 March
R=A=+—8H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-hEFE ZZ-NF ZZ2—+F —ZT-—RF —ZT—h8F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT FAT FAT FAT FAT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥BEREARE
Total assets LBERE 29,069 53,561 84,402 95,765 60,820
Total liabilities BERE (7,644) (7,778) (11,206) (17,010) (8,082)
Net assets EEFE 21,425 45,783 73,196 78,755 52,738
Equity Ry k] 21,425 45,783 73,196 78,755 52,738
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